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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Annual General Meetng

The Finnair Plc Annual General Meetng will be held on
23 March 2005 at 3 p m ac the Helsinki Fair Center, Mes-
suaukio 1, Congress Wing entrance, Hall €1

Nortice of atrendance at the Annual General Meeting
must be made by 1 p m UTC 21 March 2005 at the latest
Motice of actendance can given esther by post to the address
Finnarr Plc, Share Register HEL-AAC/ 155, 01053 FINNAIR,
by fax to +358 9 818 7603, by telephone to +358 9 818
7637 from Monday to Friday between 6 am -1 p m UTC
or by e-mail to agm@finnair com The letters, facsimiles or
e-mails of artendance must have arrved before the above
deadline

Shareholders who are registered with the Finnish Central
Securities Depository Ltd {APK) by 11 March 2005 at the
latest, or who are holders of shares entered in the admin-
istrative register and who on the aforementioned date are
temporarly entered in the register of shareholders in the
manner spectfied in Chapter 3a Secuon 11a of the Com-
panies Act, are entitled to attend the AGM Sharehaolders
whose shares have not been transferred to the book-entry
securinies system may also atrend the AGM on condinion
thar such shareholders were registered in the Company’s
register of shareholders before 11 June 1993 In this case,
the shareholder must present their share ceroficares at the
AGM, or provide an exptanation of why their sharehold-
ing rights have not yet been transferred to the book-entry

system

Dmidend proposal

The Group s distributable equity according to the financial
statements on 31 December 2004 amounts to 321,601,403 59
euros, while the distributable equity of the parent company
comes to 301,972,035,94 euros The Board of Directors
proposes to the Annual General Meetng that a divwdend of
0 10 euros per share be distributed, a toral of 8,475,921 30
euros, and that the remainder of the distributable equity
be carried over as retained earnings

Financial informaton

The Company will publish the following financial reports
in 2005
* Interim Report Q1 (1 Jan - 31 Mar 2005)
12 May 2005at9a m (6am UTC)
» Interim Report Q2 (1 Jan - 30 Jun 2005)
16 Aug 2005 at9a m {6am UTC)
* Interim Report Q3 (1 Jan - 30 Sep 2005)
10Nov2005at9am (7am UTC)

To order the Annual Report and other pubhcations

The Annual Report 2004 will be published in Finnish and
English To order fax +358 ¢ 818 4401 ore-mail
post@finnair com

Electronic Annual Report

The Annuat Reportss published on the Internet in Finnish, Swed-
ish and Enghsh at the address www finnair com/2004

Change of address

Shareholders are kindly requested to report any changes of
address to the Finmish Central Secunties Depository Led,
where shareholders’ book-entry accounts are kept
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KEY FIGURES
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Key figures

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000*

Turnover EUR mult 1,698 1,558 1,656 1,631 1,658
EBITDA EUR mill 118 85 175 145 232
Operating profit EUR mill 17 -19 60 13 (A
Operating profit to turnover % 10 -12 37 08 67
Profiu before extraordinary
iterns and taxes EUR mull " -22 54 9 120
Unit revenues of Aight
operations ¢ / RTK 711 800 881 898 9213
Unit costs of fight
operations ¢ / ATK 518 587 631 658 676
Earmings/share Euro 014 -01% 043 008 095
Equity/share Euro 729 724 758 722 754
Grass capital expenditure ELUR mill 15 82 102 281 247
Interest bearing net debe EUR mill -34 -18 20 212 74
Equity ratio % 427 44 4 44 3 413 42 2
Net debt-to-equity (Gearing} % -55 -29 31 346 11
Adjusted Gearing % 955 1027 82 116 6 727
Return on capital employed % 37 0 76 29 153
Average number of staff 9,522 9,981 10,476 10,847 11,051

*Pro forma figures year 2000
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EMPLOYED
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FINNAIR IN BRIEF

Finnair’s goal 1s to be the leading Northern European awvi-
ation service enterprise

Eurcpean excellence

Finnarr's aim s to provide the most highly regarded, qualcy
of travel-related services, which are operanionally the bestin
Europe and the most desirable choice for the customer

Market leader
Finnair 1s the market leader in air transport to and from
Finland as well as tn gateway traffic through Finland

Values

The values thar guide Finnair’s operations always put the
customer first Qur prionities are continious development,
honesty, openness, willingness to take responsibility, fair-
ness and respect for others

Sustamnable, profitable growth
Finnair's business objective Is to achieve sustainable and
profitable growth Geographical expectanons are placed on

the growing Asian, Scandinavian and Baluc markers

Competition strategy

Finnair's compeninion strategy 15 based on its high quahty
of service, 1ts status as one of the most punctual airfines in
the industry and its comprehensive, conunually expanding
route network via its alliance partnerships Finnairis safe-
guarding its strong compettive position by making effec-
tive use of various distribution channels and by developing

ILS Services

Capitalising on e-business

Finnair will improve its compenitiveness and cost efficiency
by taking advantage of the possibilities e-business offers in
its internal and external processes as well asin e-commerce

and customerservice

Capable partner

Finnair 1s deterrmined to be a capable and active partner
that provides added value for its associates Finnairis an
expert on the Nordic dimension within the oneworld alli-

ance |tis Finnair’s aim to consohidate its positon by being
a pieneer as well as a developer and user of new technol-
ogy, as well as being a beneficiary of the synergies offered
by the alliance

Preferred choice

Finnair’s aim 1s to be the most desirable, safe, reliable and
friendly choice for s customers Finnair 1s systermaucally
developing its service cancepts on the basis of feedback
fromts customers New technology enables us to provide
an nereasingly personal and comprehensive service for our
clients

Professional personnel

A professionally skilled, motivated and committed work
force 15 an asset that Finnair values highly We acuvely work
to promote job sausfaction as well as staff capabiliies ina
rapidly changing work environment A management culture

of reward underpins our personnel strategy

Corporate and socal responsibility

Finnair recognises its role as a responsible partnerin the
society and the communities where it 1s operating A re-
sponsible and open environmental policy is a permanent
feature of the company’s way of doing business We pay
active attention to the most pressing environmental chal-
lenges, whech are arcraft notse, engine ermissions and waste
management

Dividend policy

Itis the aim of Finnair’s dividend policy to pay on average
at least two thirds of the earnings per share as dividend
during an economic cycte

Financial targets

The basis for settng financial targets (s that the company
produces added financial value The targetis metif the six
per cent operaung profit margin and 17 per cent EBITDAR
ratio are surpassed
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FINNAIR GROUP

SCHEDULED PASSENGER
TRAFFIC

Finnair Scheduled Passenger
Traffic

LEISURE TRAFFIC
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STRATEGY SHOWS ITS METTLE

A year ago we were hopeful that by now we might have a
gentle ta)l wind to help us along But it never came to pass,
2004 was not an easy year Despite the wind in our faces, we
kept our financial health in good shape, however With our
own decisions and actions we have created the foundation
for Finnair's vitality into the future

The industry has long suffered from overcapacity There
have been dozens of barkruptcies 1n Europe and there are
more to come The fact that the total result of European
airlines has not been in profit since 1998 speaks for itself
Partcularly in northern skies, last year brought histonically
hard competition, which led to a collapse in prices Many
airhines’ load factors are far below profitability levels Dur-
ing the last eighteen months, eight new companies have
entered our domestic market, of which four have already
ceased operating The chances for those thac are left to
operate profitability in this market are questionable

Despite a difficult market climate, our profitability clearly
improved from a loss-making 2003, but it stll remained
modest Prices fell sharply, but we correspondingly cut unic
costs through an uncompromIsINg COSI-CUttNg programme
and unyielding effort With geod planming and flexible use of
resources we achieved significant productvity improvements
withint the Group This environment does not give anything
for free The heaviest burden was the steep rise in the oil
price, which devoured our hard-earned savings

Many of our strategic decisions have proved to be right
We decided to move from defence to attack in spring 2003
Our price reform has given us the necessary flexibility m a
compeutive situation and has increased our market share
Our budger arline flynordic immediately validaced uts place
in the Scandinavian market in its first year of operation by
carrying 725,000 passengers The concept works The next
step s to conunue expanding with new routes

The expansion of Asian traffic that we inimiared in 1999
has shown its strength in recentyears In scheduled passenger
traffic one in four euras we earn comnes from Asian passenger
and cargo business Qur network, which s based on traffic
between European and Asian destinations, enables Finmish
customers to fly direct to major centres in the Far East Our
chosen strategy has also to a large extent secured the Jobs
of more than one thousand Finnair employees

just before the turn of the year, we passed the eight
million passenger mark for the first ume in Finnair’s his-
tory Growing passenger volumes are indicative both of a
recavery in demand for air travel and of customers’ confi-
dence in Finnair Finnair's volume growth and load factor
are indisputably among the bestin Eurape

Leisure Traffic’s result for last year was historically good
Demand for leisure cravel and the supply of package tours

were in balance This fed to an improvement in the aver-
age price as the number of last-minute offers has declined
significantly

The year ended armidst the shocking aftermath of the
catastrophe in Southeast Asia Our organisation began to
act immadiately to the emergency, from the first mements
of this natural disaster In the Finnair Group there was no
lack of volunteers, and thousands of Finnair employees were
stretched to therr imits Evacuation was greatly supported
by the selfless actions of tour guides and other volunteers
in the devastated areas

The evacuaton of thousands of Finns from the areas af-
fected showed our organisation’s desire to take care of our
customers and act responsibly Finnair is the airline of the Finns,
and that was the basis of our actions when on Boxing Day we
began on our own nitiative to help those in distress

High operational quality has created for Finnair a repu-
tation as Europe’s most punctual and reliable airline Our
service has been ranked in various surveys among the abso-
lute ehite of Furopean airlines Product superionity will also
be a vital disunguishing factor for us in the future!

During these turbulent times for the airline industry we
have been able to renew our fleet Our five-year programme
to acquire 29 Airbus A320 series arcraft was completed in
September The decision made last summer ta acquire 12
Embraer E170 aircraft continues the fleet renewal process
The arrival of the new aircraft will reduce the number of
types of aircrafc we have

Despite our major (nvestment programmes, the com-
pany is virtually debt-free Our balance sheet and financial
position are strong, In contrast with many other airlines
around us This gives us the staying power required in a
rapidly changing industry

Change will continue in our industry and wc will require
from us a capacity to renew Improvement in profitability
from the present level 1s the most important shore- and
mid-term target An effective strategy and strong corporate
image create a sohd foundation | believe that wath the recov-
ery in demand and improverents in operational efficiency
we have what it takes to achieve a clear improvement in
the result duning the currentyear

I would like to thank our customers and our sharehold-
ers for the trust they have shown In our company and also
for the valuable contribution of our employees towards the

fulfilment of common objectives

She o O
.( I’::rr

Keyo Suila
President and CEO
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improving profitability from its present level 1s the
key short- and mid-term objective. Finnair’s strategy
is working. Last year we showed our strengths and

| believe in our ability to progress this year, too.
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TOP TRAFFIC GROWTH IN EUROPE

Finnair’s Scheduled Passenger Traffic dwision is responsible
for regular passenger and cargo traffic Scheduled Passenger
Traffic 1s the largest of the Group’s dwisions and it represents
80 per cent of the Group's external turnover Finnair’s sche-
duled passenger traffic service is based on comprehensive
service provision to passengers and cargo customers

In addwion to the scheduled passenger traffic operanens
which fly under the Finnair brand, the dwision consists of
the Estonian feeder-traffic operator Aero and the Swedish
company flynordic, which s applying the budget arrline
concept in the Scandinavian marker The resulc of Finnair
Arrcraft Finance Oy, which manages the Group’s aircraft
fleet, 1s reported as a part of the Scheduled Passenger Traf-
fic division’s result

Powerful responses to changes
in the operating environment
Air rravel has returned to a growth track after years of falling
demand Overcapacity in air transporthas resulted, however,
in severe price competition and a decline in average prices
Improving profitability has required strict cost disciphne

Enthusiasm for establishing new airlines 1s evident in
the emergence of tens of new companies in European skies
alone The threshold of entry into the business has become
lower, as aircraft and professional staff are available on at-
tractive and flexible terms The challenges set by profitable
operatiens have also led, of course, to a long lisc of com-
pames which have ceased operating

The price of fuel represented an unforeseen factor on
the cost side duning 2004 Finnair’s addiional fuel bill last
year was 55 mullion euros, despite the implementation of a
price hedging palicy Aviation fuel accounts for 12 percent
of Finnair’s costs

The external shocks of the past years and other non-
arhne industry-related uncertainty factors have unsettled
the operating environment In these conditions, Finnair
has created the basis for its chosen operations and solu-
tons The strategy works and financial healch has been
cared for

Consistent, long-term activity in the present conditions
requires financial health and an effecuve strategy, as well as
fAlextbility and an ability to adapt quickly Finnair has applied
these remedies together with its strong brand recognition
and reputation for reliabibity among customers

In autumn 2003 Finnair moved from defence to offence
by reforming its pricing on domestic and European routes
A flight-leg -based pricing system was introduced that has
brought more clarity, flexibility and chaice for both busi-
ness and leisure travel At the same time customers were

given the opportunity to select their outbound and inbound
flights flexibly in terms of both price and routing In spring
2004, the new price concept was extended to cover long-
haul routes as well

With the aid of the price reform, Finnair has managed
to clearly increase load factors and market share more than
other European arrlines Due to the price reform and to
overcapacity, the average price has fallen in scheduled pas-
senger traffic by a fifth in 2004 the fall in the average price
halted and in 2005 the average price I1s expected to remamn
acthe previous year’s level

Passenger numbers reach a new record

The strategic expansion in the Scandinavian and Asian mar-
kets Increased passenger numbers in all areas of scheduled
passenger traffic in 2004 Passenger load factors improved
right across the network Growth of demand was the highest
among European arrlines The toral number of passengers
carried by Finnawr Group airhnes passed the eight mithon
rmark for the first aime in the company’s history

Asian traffic grew in 2004 by more than 40 per cent com-
pared with the previous year Even if the effects of the SARS
epideric in 2003 are taken into account, the net growth
for the year was still 15-20 per cent Through the addition
of a sixth Boeing MD-11 wide-bodied aircraft, traffic was
boosted by increasing the flight frequency on the Osaka
and Shanghai routes from three to five return flighes per
week The next new destination 1s Guangzhou in China The
route, which Finnair will fly three umes a week, will open
in September 2005

Finnair's scheduled passenger flight desnnations in Asia
are Beyjing, Hong Kong and Shanghai in China, Tokyo and
Osaka in Japan as well as Bangkok in Thailand and Singa-
pore Finnair flies to China twice a day and to Japan and
Bangkok in Thailand daily In Norch America the only all-
year-round desunation is New York

- DISTRIBUTHON OF .
SCHEDULED TRAFFIC
AND CARGO REVENUES

DISTRIBUTION OF
PASSENGER SALES IN
SCHEDULED TRAFFIC

Novth
America Asia
5% Europe 3%

0% America
Asia 4%
23%

Domestic Europe
Darmesric 3%
0%
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Finnair is a well known brand. Blue and white

colours bring to mind Finmishness and freshness,
rehability and punctuality.

DPJJE il JOﬁUBS‘;Dd pa|npaq=r;

~



New operating modeis bring profitability and growth

Finnarr’s Scheduled Passenger Traffic division handles do-
mesuic trunk routes, most European rraffic and long-haul
traffic For curbo-prop traffic to neighbouring countries,
Finnatr founded the Estorian subsidiary Aero in 2002 The
Nordic countries’ leading budget arrhine flynordic operates in
the Scandinavian market in addition, cooperation enables
the Finnair network to be supplemented by domestic and
international partners, especially the oneworld alliance

The Swedish subsidiary flynordic, then named Nordic
Airlink, was acquired for the Finnair Group in autumn 2003
All of the company’s shares were transferred to Finnair at
the beginning of 2004 Finnair has developed flynordic into
the leading airline in Scandinavia to apply the new operat-
ing model

flynordic flies from Stockholm Arlanda to Copenha-
gen, Oslo, Gothenburg, Kiruna, Lule& and Umed The next
stage of operauional expansion will see the opening of new
routes from Scandinavia to elsewhere in Europe this year
The network expansien will be achieved mainty with present
resources, which will improve the utihsation of the fleet’s
seven Boeing MD-80 aircraft fleer

flynardic flies to the mamn airperes of its destination
ciues This factor, together with the easy accesstbility of
flight booking and auxiliary services, has atrracted business
passengers in particular to flynordic’s fights In 2004 the
Swedish state procurement office, after a competinive ten-
der, assigned fiynordic te mast-favoured status i che travel
arrangements of state officials on several routes In its first
year of operation, flynordic carned 725,000 passengers,
which was significantly above 1ts target level

The Estomian subsidiary Aero s a feeder-route company
with a hghter coststructure Aero’s operating scructure has
tirned a loss-making sector towards a better direction in
terms of profitability In 2004 Finnair cransferred ivs entire
turbo-prop traffic to Aero, which operates the routes with
eight ATR 72 arcraft In Finland its network covers the south
of the country In addition to the Helsinki-Tallinn route, Aero
flies from Helsinki to Riga in Latvia and to Vilmius in Lithu-
ania as well as, in the summer, to Kuresaare on the Estonia

island of Saaremaa Aero’s dormicile s Talhnn, Estonia

Fleet one of the youngest wn Europe

Finnair has renewed half of its 69-strong fieet of arrcraftin
the past five years The fleet operated by the Group’s airlines
15 one of the youngest in Europe

In Seprember 2004, the acquisition of 29 Airbus A320
series aircraft was completed During the programme, which

began five years earlier, Finnair obtained for European and
domestic trunk routes three different sizes of aircraft, al-
lewing capacity to be adjusted according te demand on
each flighe

The fleet modermisation continues in Septermnber 2005
when the first of twelve E170 aircraft ordered by Finnairis
delivered By the end of the year, four of the new 76-seat
arrcraft will have arrived, with a further six to come 1in 2006
and two mare tn January-February 2007 Finnair has op-
tions for eight additional aircraft

The Brazihan Embraer E170 jet aircraft represents mod-
ern aviation technology Itis i terms of passenger com-
fortequivalent in standard to large passenger aircraft The
Embraers will reduce eperating costs in terms of vartous
cost tactors, such as operating fees and crew costs The
wvestment programime will reduce the number of types of
aircraftin Finnair’s fleet, as the Boeing MD-80 aircraft and
the ATR 72 turbo prop aircraft will be withdrawn Due to
new technology, the Embraer’s eco-efficiency will also sup-
port Finnair’s environmentally posttive objectives

Bringing simplicity and comforr to travelhng

Finnair set as its target to be the best in a comparison of
European airlines’” business class service levels in 2005 By
listening to and implementng customers” wishes, ths car-
getwas already achieved in 2004 Tourist class service was
also been in the top three in the comparison

The rarget i 2005 1s to conunue the refurbishmenc of
the cabins of the long-haul Boeing MD-11 aircraft The
modernisation work includes the intreduction of lie-flat
seats in business class, which enable passengers 1o rest ly-
ing down The new seat design also gives passengers more

privacy for rest and working

CARGO REVENUES 2004 - CARGO
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Finnair 1s the firsc airline in Europe to refurbish the business
class cabins of its entire interconunental fleet Economy class
service 15 also being improved in tong-haul traffic

Growth in the use of e-tickets and e-business as well as
the development of electronic services 15 increasing flexibility
in the handling of travel matters and generating cost-savings
for arlines at the same tme More than half of Finnair's
scheduled passenger traffic passengers now use e-tickets In
domestic traffic che utilisawon rate 1s already 90 per cent

In the latest development step in electromic services,
Finnair became in QOcrober 2004 the first arrline in the world
to introduce a mobile phone service in which check-in s
performed in advance with a text message The new service
quickly became very popular The service only requires cus-
tormers to answer the text message before the flight After
receiving confirmation, Finnair sends to the mobile phone
a further confirmation message containing the necessary
departure gate and sear number information

Check-in by text message Is a new service offered to
members of the Finnair Plus frequent-fiyer programme The
service allows frequent flyers to go direct to the departure
gate, bypassing the normal check-in process All of Finnair’s
internatonal flights deparong from Helsinki and Stockholm
fall with the scope of the check-in message service

One third of the Finnair Plus frequent-flyer programme’s
award flights are booked via the internec A custorner re-
lanonship management system that is funcuonally mere
flexible and more cost-efficient will be introduced n sum-
mer 2005

To improve the use of frequent flyer points and the avail-
ability of travel offerings directed at Finnair Plus customers,
a new service, Plus Departures, was launched in September
2004 Plus Departures are fight offers to selected scheduled
traffic desunations which are varied monthly and which can
be purchased with Plus points or a combinaton of poines

and money

Asian traffic accounts for half of cargo traffic

During 2004 the arr cargo business recovered slowly from
a penod of lower demand caused by the crises of previous
years Growth of the Asian market conunued strong In-
stead, the sector is troubled by demand weighed towards
capacity heading from Asia to Europe

Cargo capacity scaled according to the high demand of
the Assan market has created overcapacity in the opposite
directian, from Europe to Asia This has led to a sharp fall
in load factor and cargo prices in the sector

Revenues grew significantly in 2004 from their 2003
level The strong rise in the price of aircraft fuel was com-
pensated for by separate surcharges, which improved the
profitability of operations Asian traffic accounts for one
half of cargo route revenue Cargo and mail loads on Asian
routes grew by a third compared with the previous year

Mostof Finnair's cargo and mail is carried in the holds
of passenger atrcraft In developing cargo services, cargo
aircraft links to Central Europe and the Persian Gulf area
as well as to Asia and North America have been added
since autumn 2003 chrough cooperation with partners
in Europe, Finnair Cargo has cargo arcraft links from Hel-
sinki to Vienna and Luxembourg In long-haul traffic, the
cargo arrcraft links are between Dubai, Gothenburg and
New York as weli as from Helsinki to Hong Kong In the sum-
mer of 2004, cargo arrcraft traffic was suspended due to
tow demand

Traffic an the Guangzhou route, which opens in Sep-
tember 2005, will allow growth and an expansion of activity
to a new market area in Asia A new cargo aircraft link to
China s also being planned

In 2005 air cargo business will conunue to be adversely
affected by world-wide overcapacity, but a recovery in the
global economy will improve demand Finnair’s cargo rev-
enue Is expected to grow due to improving demand and
new partnership opporturuties

Finnair’s scheduled passenger services recorded the best
growth n traffic and load factors in Europe. The long-term
decline in average prices was halted at the end of 2004.

The Finnawr subsidiaries Aero and flynordic are delivering

operational flexibility and new growth in the Baltic

region and the Nordic countries
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Scheduled Passenger Traffic

The logo and corporate image colours of Finnair’s
Estonian substdiary Aero are familiar. They exude

the same sense of rehability as Finnair. Aero operates
as a feeder-traffic company in the Baltic region.




FINNISH DREAMS LEND WINGS TO LEISURE TRAFFIC

Aurinkomatkat-Suntours and Finnarr Leisure Flights form
a strong combination in the Finmish tournism market As
far as leisure tnips are concerned, Finns are accustormed to
putting their trust in Finmsh service Aurinkomatkat-Sun-
tours 15 the rarket leader 1n package tour producuon and
Finnair Leisure Flights provides transport for custormers
of Aurinkomatkat and other tour operators to and from
their holiday destinanens The Leisure Traffic division's high
brand recognition in the domestic markert creates a strong
foundaton for future developmentin Finland and in neigh-
bouring countries

In the last week of 2004, the world was shocked by
the natural catastrophe in Southeast Asia Finnair Leisure
Flights acted quickly and, in cooperation with the Group’s
other units, tour operators and Finmush officials, organised
ten evacuation flights and ane ambulance flight to carry
more than 2,600 Fiansh tourists home from the devas-
tated areas

Although reconstruction in the areas affected by the
catastrophe will take years, rourism will continue to be im-
portant for the economic recovery of Thalland In addition
to alternauve holiday destnanons, Aurinkomatkat-Suntours
and Finnair Leisure Flights will conunue to offer Thar desu-
nations to their customars

Aurinkomatkat-Suntours

Aurinkomartkar-Suntours enjoyed a record year in 2004
The foundation for growing business was created by the
most respected brand in the secter and by praduct quality
based on long experience and continuous renewal Product
development s driven by Aurinkomatkat-Suntours’ ability
to recognise the Finmish holidaymaker’s needs

The weather in Finland influences demand for holidays
in the sun Uncertan weatherin 2004 increased travet de-
mand in the autumn as well as sales of trips for 2005 Au-
rinkomatkat-Suntours 1s the market leader in Finland with
a market share of more than 35 per cent-measured both
by customer volumes and revenue

Aunnkomatkat-Suntours 1s a pioneer of sustainable
tourism 1 the sector Through the Tour Operators initia-
tive for Sustainable Tournism Development, the company
encourages tourism subsectors, such as the hotel busmess,
to adoptenvironmentally friendly operaung pracuices, and
urges tourist destinations to take the requirements of sus-

tainable tounsm into account at the planming stage

Finnair Leisure Flights

The Finns’ own leisure flight company carries most Finns to
their holidays in the sun - even when the tour operator i» some

other than the Finnair Group’s Aurinkematkar-Suntours
All significant tour operacors in Finfand use the services of
Finnarr Leisure Flights Finnair Lessure Flights has a markert
share of araund 80 per cent of Finnish package tour traffic
Capacity can be adjusted to annual fluctuations by leas-
ing out additional arcraft in the summer, to the markets
where demand is higher

Alongside package tours, sales of individual sears on
letsure flights are growing Electronic business 1s being de-
veloped in this context Seats are also sold through travel
agency chains A further area of development is sales of
additional services during flights

The unit s being developed under the Finnair brand in
a more independent direction, whereby product conceprs
can deviate from scheduled traffic services according to the
needs of the holiday passenger Development work s being
carried out (n cooperation with tour operarors

Leisure Flights’ success 1s based on its ability to act fast,
atlowing it to react quickly to changing customer needs In
addition to the operavonal efficiency programme, profit-
ability 1s improving due to a favourable market for aircrafc
leasing

Finnair Leisure Fiights mainly uses as its fleet 227-seat
Boeing B757 aircraft, which are ideally suited to leisure traf-
fic The Finnair fleet of seven aircraftis the most efficiently
used B757 fleet in the world

SUNTOURS TOUR
PROCUCTION BY COUNTRY
Winter 2004/2005
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TRAVEL AGENCY SECTOR CREATES NEW SOLUTIONS

The Travel Services dwision provides travel planming and travel
management services via its travel agencies Matkatoimisto
Area Oy and Suomen Matkatoimisto Oy Estomia’s larg-
est travel agency chan, Estravel, is a subsidiary of Suomen
Matkatoimisto In Finland, Mikkelin Matkatoimisto Oyis a
subsidiary of Matkatoimisto Area In addition the division
includes the travel IT solution and distribution service sup-
pher Amadeus Finland Oy

The Finnair Group’s Matkatoimisto Area and Suomen
Matkatoimisto are two of the three biggest travel agency
groups i Finland One of their assets is their strong brand
recogmuion bath among Finnish companies and in the ler-
sure travel market

Earmings maodel 1s changing

Changes in the travel sector have also reflected strongly on
travel agencies Since mostairlines have discontinued the
payment of sales commissions to travel agencies, the sector
has had to recreate its earnings model

The emphasis has moved from acung as intermedharies
for standard journeys to sales of travel management and
travel consulung services to companies and leisure passen-
gers Instead of the sales commissions thac airlines previously
paid, travel agencies’ turnaver now consists of service fees
charged from customers

Travel agencies have a long tradition of managing com-
panies’ travel arrangements Moreover, the agencies have
impraved the efficiency of their operations as companies
have cut their cravel budgets The developrment of Internet-
based sclutions and the increasingly widespread use of e-
tickets have led to a decline in the number of travel agency
offices Service has been centrahised into relephone service
fines, which also create new earnings potential

Taslored leisure trips represent a growing part of travel
agencies’ service provision Hotel boakings, car rentals and
planned actvities linked to fight journeys increasingly con-
stitute a package assembled by a travel agency At the same
time, the reservation of more simple journeys 1s done via
the Internet services offered by the airlines and the travel

agencies

Processes and systems are developing

The development of trave! sales on the Internet s continu-
ing Amadeus has developed products upon which travel
service providers can build their own business sites Con-
sumers wisiting the sites can search for travel options and

atiractive prices

The industry realises, however, that the effectve digital
distribution of travel services 1s only one of the chalfenges
facing travel agencies Efficient system solutions to com-
panies’ travel needs combined with good customer service
will enable travel agencies to create added value for their
key customers

Amadeus Finland has imitiated a project aimed at spread-
ing the Internet-based Amadeus Vista user-interface to Finn-
1sh travel agencies during 2005 Travel agency staff will be
able to use a user-interface which combines all the available
incernational and domesuc wravel services as well as anen-
terprise resource planning system ACE

Travel agencies and theiwr customers will benefit from
the increased efficiency generated by centralised systems,
from itinerary management to ucket writing Innovatiens
will focus on the cost-effective provision of new services
that will pass added value on to the customer
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Finnair’s Swedish subsidiary flynordic complements
the Finnair Group’s family of airhnes. Budget airline

flynordic 1s increasing its market share in the
Scandinavian market
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EFFICIENCY BOOST IN SERVICE PROVISION

The Aviation Services division consist of four business urits
Northport Oy prowides ground handling services, Finnair
Carering Oy produces meals for fights and engages in sales
actwinies at airports and on aircraft, and Finnair Technical
delivers arrcraft marncenance services Finnair Facilinies Man-
agement Oy 1s responsible for managing the Finnair Group's
real estate and for providing office services The units” larg-
est customers are airlines belonging to the Finnair Group
Business done outside the Finnair Group accounts for 25-40
per cent of turnover, however, depending on the unit

Network airlines have tradittenally produced air traffic
auxiary services thernselves Thendustry has seen the out-
sourcing of support services during the last 15 years In Finnair
Group, too, the handling of support functiens have been
transferred to partner companies In recent years

Finnasr believes that its makes more sense to produce
within the Group those functions closely connected with air
traffic, such as ground handling, catering and technical ser-
vices This naturally requires that the services are produced
competmively both in terms of price and quality

Ground handling

The funcuons of the Finnair Ground Handling business unic
were Incorporated inte an independent company, Northport
Oy, on May 1, 2004 Northport Oy handles the passenger
services of Finnair and many other airlines as well as the load-
ing of baggage, cargo and matl in connection with aircraft
departures and arrivals

Northpore aperates either itself or with parters at all of
the Finrish asrports to which Finnair Group airkines fly In ad-
dition, Northport's FinnHandling prowides ground handling
services at Arlanda Airportin Stockholm

The challenge in ground handling 1s to adapt to increasing
comperinen and falling prices in the Nordic marketand also

to changing processes in the wake of technclogical develop-
ment Digitalisauon increases self-service opuons and enables
the reassessment of resource needs as well as the redeployment
of resources

In 2004 Northport Oy revarmped its Helsinki-Vantaa opera-
nons Certain activittes were transferred to partner companies
and the company’s own procedures were enhanced through the
use of Information systems and the extension of muln-tasking

In 2003 Finnair began a structural reform programme in-
volving the transfer of ground handling at domestic airports to
the responsibility of local entrepreneurs Functions have now
been transferred to external entrepreneurs at all of Northport's
domestic airports, except at Tampere and Turku, where op-
erating models have been overhauled

Afurther challenge in ground handling actvity s to allocate
personnel resources efficiently Traffic volume fluctuates strongly
at different nmes of the day, week and year Northport’s more
independent status will improve opportunities for expanding
the company’s customer base and for prowiding services more
flexibly to different customer segments

Northport Oy and FinnHandling Ab employ more than
800 people Inaddwon, the companies have a network of 14
partners providing ground handling services

Catering

This business area comprises Finnair Catering Oy and 1ts sub-
sidiary Finncatering Oy Finnair Catering is responsible for the
logistics of catering services, for part of meal preparation and
for sales that take place at arports and on flights, 1 & trading
actovities Finncatering produces meals for leisure fiights and
for European economy class, and supplies catering products
to retall food outlets

In 2003 structural changes in production were initiated 1n
Finnair Catering and in 2004 therr impact became evident as

Aviation Services strengthen Finnair’s corporate

image Last year, substantial productivity

improvements were achieved in Finnair’s technical,

catering and ground handling services




a significant improvernent in efficiency The objective is to
enhance production processes and improve operational quality
m both catering umits by introducing the LEAN production
method Moreover, customers’ quality targets have been
mamtained, which 1s apparentin the success of customer
arrlines, parucularly the mam customer Finnair Scheduled
Passenger Traffic, in gaming top ratings in a service survey
conducted by the airlines

In-fight and airpart product sales have grown as air
travel has increased Sales acuvities will be extended to new
European routes An e-commerce site will open on the Inter-
net in surmmer 2005 to enable passengers to place advance
orders for products

Finnair Catering, like other catering companies, has
adapted 1ts producution to the airhnes’ altered market situa-
ton A clear overcapacity 1s evident In many market areas
Withdrawals from markets and company restructurings
within the sector are expected

Finnair flights have increasingly adopted the practice of
loading catering products on to arrcraft at Helsink for both
the outward and return legs of the fight Thus new practice
has made more efficient use of Finnair Catering’s produc-
tion capacity and improved profitability

Work to reinforce structural changes and compenitive-
ness will conunue, and towards this end Finnair Catering Qy
concluded a three-year cooperation agreement with the ca-
tering sector’s market leader LSG Sky Chefs on 20 October
2004 Cost-efficiency has also been sought by concluding

procurement cooperation agreemsen s

Techmcal services

Finnair Techmical’s services range from full-scale serwaing and
overhauls to small, ndmidual repair jobs The unit provides
high quality rechnical services, primarily for Finnair but alse

for other airlines, of which the largest customers are Luft-
hansa Cargo and Aeroflot

Sales outside the Finnair Group grew in 2004 A new
opening s the sale of basic maintenance services for turbo-
prop aircraft to a Chinese airline Finnair Techrical aims to
expand sales of its special expertise in a growing market

As part of the restructuning of the Finnair Group, Finnair
Technical has been developed as a business unit into a
distinct profit centre Structural arrangements advanced
further wher in spring 2004 a Technical Services unit was
established in Finnair Scheduled Passenger Traffic with
responsibiiity for purchasing and opuirnising the cost of
aircraft mantenance operations

Finnair Techmical, in line with Finna:ir Group’s opera-
tional efficiency programme, has managed to reduce iis
unit costs Further efficiencies will be generated when a
comprehensive enterprise resource planning systerm (s in-
rroduced becween 2004 and 2006 As one element of the
efficiency programme, 1t will also be possible ro match
fabour more effectively to maintenance processes and
schadules

Finnair Faclities Management

Finnair Facilines Management Oy’s area of business 1s real-
estate management, development and leasing as well as
servicing and maintenance In addioon, the unit provides
office services to those occupying the properties As a new
subarea, the unit now incorporates the Procurement Ser-
vices department, which centralises the joint purchases of
the enoire Finnair Group

Facifities under management total around 300,000
square metres Demand for real-estate and office services
(s growing strongly in the Helsinki-Vantaa Airport area and

in the Aviapolis distnct near by
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TRAFFIC INFORMATION AND FLEET

Finnarr traffic performance

Geporonita )

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Fhight hours 196,795 172,884 172,681 180,863 183,082
Fhight kilometres {1,000) 121,027 113,852 104,838 107,574 107,379
Available seat kilometres mill 21,907 18,644 17,785 18,489 18,219
‘§ Revenue passenger kilometres mull 15,604 12,971 12,793 12,796 12,700
j, - Passenger load facror % 7112 69 6 719 692 69 7
gv Available tonne kilometres mull 3162 2,636 2,491 2,493 2,509
'E Revenue tonne kilometres ml 1,791 1,470 1,439 1,417 1,464
Iﬂ;‘r Owverall load factor % 566 558 578 568 584
. Passengers {1,000) 8,149 6,849 7,037 7,537 7 542
- K Cargo and mail {1,000 kg) 86,245 73,416 72,084 71,900 82,847
4 4 4
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’ MD-82/83 MD-82/83 (flynordic) ATR72 (Aero)

if Finnair Group fleet 31 December 2004
s
A
3,%5 ’ Seats Owned Leased Total Average age
¥ A319 123-126 7 4 1t 32
{‘ ’ A320 144 6 6 12 24
; A321 181 4 2 6 39
MD-82/83* 140-156 5 13 18 160
ATR72** 68 5 0 140
MD-11 296 2 4 1009
B757 227 0 7 7 56
Total 3 36 69 88

* Eight of the aircraft are operated by Aynordic
**All ATR72 turboprop arcraft are operated by Aero

Finnair has firm orders for 12 and opuons for eight Embraer E170 arrcraft The planes will be delivered to Finnair between September

2005 and February 2007




RISK MANAGEMENT IN FINNAIR

Risk managementin Finnairis a Group management respon-
sibihty Risk management measures are directed primariy at nisks
that threaten the fulfilment of the Group’s business objectives
Finnair's risk management acevity 1s guided by business objectives
set by shareholders, finance prowiders, customers, management,
personnel and other important interest groups

In order to exploit business oppertunities Finnairis prepared
to take controlled and calculated risks Meanwhile, no risks are
rzken in flight safery maters Risk managementand safery thinking
are anintegral part of Finnair's operating practices and culture
as well as its management and supervision procedures

Finnawr strives to anncipate the realisanon of nsks The Group’s
risk management actvity includes rnisk recognition and analysis
Based on this, a range of nsk management measures are used,
taking into account the opamisation of costs ansing from risk
management Administrative means are used to avoid and re-
mave nsks, to reduce the probabhty and impact of risks as well
as to spread and transfer risks As a parc of risk management,
effective special sitcuaton managemenc preparedness has been
putin place

The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer are
responsible for the Group’s risk management strategy and
principles as well as for the managementc of risks that chreaten
the fulfilmenc of scrategic objecuves The Executive and Senior
Vice Presidents of business units and Managing Direcrors of
subsidiary companies are responsible for nisk managementin
their areas of responsibility

The Group’s Chief Financial Officeris responsible for developing
the management of financial risks with the assistance of the VP,
Croup Treasury SVP, Adrministration and Personnel Resources
is responsibie for developing the management of acaident risks
The management of flight safety risks is the responsibility of a
separately appointed organisation of responsible personnel ap-
proved by the authonues The level of nisk management as well as
the developmentand pracucal apphcation of risk management
principles s directed by a risk management sreering group and
monitored by internal and external auditing

Finnair's risks are classified into strategic, operational, financial
and acadent nisks Based on this risk classificanon, the Group
constantly surveys and analyses business risks, determines
acceptable nisk levels and formulates risk management measuras
for vanous risk categories The Group’s subsidianes and busi-
ness units have conducred analyses of the most significant nsks
to which thetr own business activities are exposed

Operating environment risks

Demand for passenger and cargo traffic has been most influenced
by various unexpected evenrs, such as environmental disasters
and epidermics The current trend clearly indicates that compeu-
tveness in the air transport sector depends on how flexibly the
company can react and adapt to unexpected events, changesin

demand and to a changing compeutive environment

A cnincal factor for operatonal flexibdity in the future is the
adjustment of fixed costs to fluctuations in demand More-
over, the company’s ability to react quickly in adjusting capac-
i1ty, routes and costs to correspond to changing demand and
economic conditions 1s also an essential factor in maintaining
the company’s profitability During the past few years, sev-
eral projects have been implemented at Finnair which have

increased structural flexibilicy

Unexpected events require preparation

Preparing for epridemics is part of Finnarr’s crisis management
planning Finnawr conunually and actively moturors develop-
merits in the situaoon with regard to epidemics throughout
the world The company strives to antcipate changes relating
to infectious diseases and the resulung changes in customer
behaviour and to reacr quickly to altered circumstances

if necessary, the development of an eprdermic and the meas-
ures taken in response are communicated quickly and reliably
The company’s arr transport capacity Is redeployed in regions
that are deemed safe Guidelines are prepared to protect cus-
tomers and employees

At the end of 2004, the business impacts of the Southeast
Asia tsunam) carastrophe were alleviated by capacity and route
changes in leisure traffic The quick evacuation of Finnish tour-
1sts showed the ability of Finnair’s different units to act quickly
and flexibly when faced with unexpected events

Finnair will defend its operaung rights

An airline domiciled in the European Union can operate freely
within the entire area of the Union To date Finland, like other
European countries, has negotiated bilateral operatng agree-
ments with countries outside the European Union

In future, regulation at the European Union level will bring
the negotation of aviation agreements berween countries inside
and outside the European Union under the European Com-
mission Exisung bilaceral operating agreements will remain in
force in the new situauon

As a negotiating party the Union 1s stronger than an inds-
wtdual country and thus can swrengthen the posiion of Euro-
pean airlines when negouaung operating rights In some cases
this may have an adverse impact on Finnair and may weaken
the company’s compettive posizon in relation to other Euro-
pean arrlines Finnair for its partwill endeavour to influence
actively the parues who negoniate operating rights in order to
safeguard its interests

The company’s operations are subject to legislatve changes,
to regulations and to changes in arport charges and taxes on
both national and internauonal levels Possible changes are
actvely monitored by the company and an effort made to
mfluence thern via airline industry bodies, such as the Interna-
nonal Air Transport Associatuon {JATA) and the Association of
European Airlines (AEA)




Market risk

The air transport business is sensitive to both cychcal and sea-
sonal changes Compettion in the sector is intense and the
decline in average tuckex prices has been considerable due o
over-capacity and the changed markec situation Airhines are
cucting their prices in order o increase volumes, achieve suf-
ficient cash flow and maintain market share

Finnair has successfully responded to these challenges by
reforming its pricing structure and by permanently reducing ies
coststructure Already in autumn 2003, pricing of domestic,
Scandinavian and European flights was changed ro flight-based
pricing determined by management of supply and demand
Finnair’s serengths are service guality, an extensive route net-
work as part of the oneworld alliance and the advantages of
cooperation acquired through strategic partnerships

A change of one percentage unit in the average price level
of scheduled passenger traffic services affects the Group’s op-
eraung profit by around 10 mullion euros Correspondingly a
change of one percentage urit in the load factor of scheduled
passenger traffic services also affects the Group’s operaung
profit by over 10 million euros

To improve profitability, operations have been shared
between the parent company and Estorian subsidiary Aerc in
traffic berween Helsinki and Tallinn as well as on routes within
Finland With the acquisition of a majority shareholding in the
Swedish arline flynordic in Novenber 2003, the company (s
expanding its operations n Scandinawa flynordicis developing
into the leading budget airline 1n the Nordic countries

Vanaton in industry supply and demand also affect the
market value of aircraft Finnair manages the residual value
nsk refated to awrcraft ownership by leasing approximately half
of the fleet under operative lease agreements of different dur-
ation Aircraft leasing also allows for flexible capacity control
in the short and long term

Reliability of fhight operations

Reliability s an essenual prerequisite for operaung successfully
in the airline industry The air transport business, however,
15 exposed to various disrupnive factors such as delays, bad
weather and stnkes As well as their impact on operational and
service quality, air traffic delays also increase costs

Finnair invests conanuaily n the overall quahity and punc-
tuabity of its operational acuvinies The Network Control Centre
brings together all the crivical parnies for flight operations, thus
enabling the most effective overall solutions to be implemented
Finnair Techmical's service punctuahiy and diverse experuise as
well as its detailed specificanon of technical funcuons ensure
the reliabilicy of flight operations

Furthermore, in operatonal activities the contribution of
partners and interest groups Is essenual Finnair mormtors the

quality of external suppliers within the framework of standards

specified in advance and through regulauons prescribed for
fighc operations

According to staustcs compiled on European network air-
hines, Finnair was the most punctual airline in Europe in 2004

on the basis of flight arrival punctuahity

Information technology risk

Development of information system solunons demands con-
tunuous Investment An IT environment’s unmanageablity,
complexity and inefficiency represent nisk faccors in a rapedly
changing technological landscape These factors have a direct
influence orinformation technology and secunty costs Situ-
anonal management readiness in case of senous disruptions
in data systems and traffic has been improved at Finnarr

Finnair has under way a number of system renewal projects,
which aim to simplify, standardise and replace ageing systems
Clarifying the structure will also enable the data security of the
IT environment to be maintained more effectively The ever-
increasing prowisian of services via the [nternet demands a new
approach to investment In dara security solunons

The careful selection of external agreement partners in
IT solutiens also reduces the technology sk The Group has
ganed access to technological experuse through cooperation
between Finnairand IBM

The coordinaucn of the Group’s informarion system ar-
chitecture as well as 1t |IT purchases and strategies has been
centrahised in the Group’s informaton management depart-
ment This will bring synergy benefits and improve cost-efficiency

through economies of scale

Acadent risk

Accident risks can be dvided into owo main categonies risks
that threaten flight safery and risks that threaten corporare
secunity Acadent sk managementwork is coardinated by the
flight safety and corporate security departments

In Finnair the focus of accident risk management has been on
managing risks to the security of flights, mdwiduals and data
Other acadent nsk areas are property, environment, product,
hability and loss of business risks

in its operations the company must take into account the
possibility of vanous environmental risks The effect of Finnair's
operations on energy CONsUMpLIon, emissions and noise values
monitored actvity by the company Every year Finnair publishes
a separate Environmental Report, which includes measures and
key figures for the assessment of environmental efficiency

Principles of financial nsk management

The operations of the Finnair Group are by nature mternatonal
and require significant amounis of capital This means expo-
sure to risks related to exchange rates, interest rates, credit,

hquidity and commodity prices The policy of the Group s to



minimise the negauve effect of such risks on cash flow, financial
performance and equity

Financial nsk management 1s based on the sk managernent
policy approved by the Board of Directors i November 2004,
which defines acceptable mimmum and maximum levels for
each type of nsk Financial nsk management 1s directed and
supervised by the Financial Risk Steering Group Pracncal imple-
mentauon of financial policy and risk management have been
centrahsed mn the parent company’s finance deparument

In 1ts management of foreign exchange, interest rate and
jet fuel positions the company uses a wide range of hedging
mstruments and methods, such as forward contracts, swaps

and options

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s policy 15 to elminate the identified foreign exchange
risk Foreign exchange exposure includes balance sheet items
in forergn currencies, esnmated cash flows for next 12 months
and fixed aireraft purchase orders and sales contracts

At the end of financial year 2004, the majonty of the Group’s
interest-bearing habilives were denominated in US dollars and
euros The exchange rate nisk of the loans was almost fully
covered Around 75% of Group turnover is denominated in
euros The other key foreign sales currencies are the US dollar,
the Briush pound, the Japanese yen, the Chinese yuan and the
Swedish crown

Approximarely 30% of the Group’s operating costs are de-
nominated in currencies outside the euro zone

The main purchasing currency 1s the US dollar, which ac-
counts for almost half of all operaung costs denominated in
foreign currency Acquisition of aircraft and their spare parts
also rakes place manly in US dollars

Clearly the biggest foreign currency risk to Finnair anises from
the dollar Sigrificant dollar-denominated operanng expenses
are arrcraft leasing fees and jet fuel purchases The dollar nisk
15 dirminished by sales in doelfars and in Asian currencies which
correlate strongly with the dollar

The weakening of the doflar by one per cent - without hedg-
ing - increases the annual result by approximately 2 1 milhon
euros Atyear end - hedging included - the weakening of the
dollar by one per cent improves the result by approximately
0 5 million euros Respectively, the strengthening of the dollar
weakens the result The aforementoned dollar risk sensitary
analyses includes the Chinese yuan and Hong Kong dollarwhich
have a histoncal correlaton of 100 per centwith the dollar

Jet fuel price risk in flight operations

Jet fuel swaps and oprions are used to manage the price risk
of jet fuet used in flight operauons The hedging periodis up
to 24 months Acyear end, Finnair had hedged 48% of its jet
fuel purchases for the first six months of 2005 and 29% for

the second half The hedging policy varies berween scheduled
and letsure traffic Thanks to the change in the contractual
structure of leisure traffic, the hedging requirement s lower
than before The jet fuel price risk is shared with the tour
operators

In che financial year 2004, jet fuel used in fght opera-
tons accounted for 12% of the Group’s operating costs Fuel
costs depend on fluctuations in the cil market and the value
of the US dollar

A rise of ten per cent in the world market price of jec fuel
- without hedging - increases annual jet fuef costs by 20 mil-
lion euros At year end - hedging included - the ren per cent
increase raises costs by 13 million euros

Interest rate risk

In order to manage interest rate risks, the Group’s loans and
investrments are diversified into fixed and variable interest-rate
instruments, yet so that most of the Group's interest-bearing
loans have floatng interest rates At the end of financal year
2004, the average interest rate on the Group’s interest-bear-
ing leans was 3 35% The average matunity of Finnair's money

market investments is below 12 months

Credit risk

The Group s exposed to counterparty risk when investing its
cash reserves and in using derivative inscruments The credit
risk 1s managed by making contracts, within the framework of
caunterparty risk imits, only with financially sound domestic
and foreign banks, financral insututions and brokers biquid
assets are also invested in promissory notes and commercial
paper issued by conservatively selected comparues

Liquidity risk

The goal of Finnair Group 1s to maintan good liquidity Li-
quidity 1s ensured by cash reserves, bank account limuts, hquid
money market Investments and commtted credit facihties
With respect to aircraft purchases, the company’s policy 1s
to secure financing, for example through credit facilities, at
least six months before delwery

The Group’s hiquid assets were 291 4 mullion euros at
the end of financial year 2004 Furthermore, Finnair Plc had
the following unused credic facihines at the closing of the
accounts a domestic commercial paper programme of 100
million euros and a committed 200 million euro revolving
creditfachity The credicfacility contains a finanaal covenant
which 1s based on adjusted gearing The covenant level of
the adjusted gearing s 175 per cent, at year end the ratio Is
95 5% The maximum level set by the Board of Rirectors 15
140 per cent
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Group structure

The parent company of the Finnair Group 1s Finnair Ple,
which has 18 subsidiaries The most significant subgroups
are Suomen Markatoimisto Oy, Matkatoimisto Oy Area
and Finnair Catering Cy Other notable subsidiaries are Oy
Aurninkomatkat-Suntours Ltd Ab, Finnaw Aircraft Finartce
Oy, Finnair Cargo Oy, Northport Oy and Finnair Facihioes
Management Oy The Finnair Group’s airlines are, in addinon
to the parent company, Aerc Airlines AS and the Swedish
company Nordic Airlink Holding AB The Finnair Group’s
22 business units and subsidiaries are organised nto four
dwisions Scheduled Passenger Traffic, Leisure Traffic, Avia-
tion Services and Travel Services

Annual General Meeung and exeraising of voung nghts
at the Annual General Meeang
Ulumate authornty 1n Finnair Ple 1s exercised by the company’s
shareholders at the Annual General Meetng The Annual
General Meeting 1s convened by the company’s Board of
Directors |n accordance with the Companies Act the An-
nual General Meeting decides on, among other things, the
following matters
* The number, election and remuneration
of the Board of Directors
* The number, election and remuneration
of the auditors
* The approval of the financial statemenits
* The distribution of dividends
» The amendment of the Articles of Association

The Arucles of Association of Finnair Plc do not contain any
redempuoon clauses nor any restrictions on voting rights
The company has one series of shares

Board of Directors

Compositton and term of office
The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc consists of a chairman
and at least four and at most sixmembers The Annual General
Meenng elects the Chairman and the Members of the Board
of Directors for one year at a time The Board of Directors
elects a Vice Chawrman from among es members

On 7 Aprit 2004 the Annual General Meeting of Finnarr
Plc elected Christoffer Taxell as Chairman of the Board of
Directors, and as Members of the Board Kari Jordan (Vice
Chairman), Samuh Haapasalo, Markku Hyvarinen, Veli Sund-
back, Helena Terho and Kaisa Vikkula The Board of Direc-
tors’ term of office expires at the end of the Annwal General
Meeting to be held on 23 March 2005 All members of the
Board are non-executive and independent as defined in the
Finrish rules and regulacions

Duties and meetings
The Board of Directors Is responsible for the company’s
operations and finances, 1t convenes the Annual General
Meetng and it prepares the matters to be dealt with at the
Annual General Meeting The Board of Directors s also
responsible for implementing the decisions of the Annual
General Meeung

The Board of Directors appoints and disrmisses the Presi-
dent & CEO and decides on his/her salary The Board of
Directors also appoints and dismisses the deputy to the
President & CEO The Board of Directors selects the members
of the Group’s Board of Management and decides on their
terms of employment, taking into account the guidelines of
personnel strategy and remunerauon system in accordance
with the company’s adrministrauve principles The Board of
Directors is responsible for ensuring that the company’s ac-
counts, budger monjtoring systems and risk managemenc
are arranged 1n accordance with the company’s admins-
trative principles

The Board of Directors 1s also responsible for ensuring
that the openness and farness referred to in the company’s
adrinistrative principles are implemented in the informa-
tion given in the company’s financial statements

The company’s business name is signed by the Chaw-
man of the Board of Directors and the President & CEO
each separately or two members of the Board of Directors
together The Board of Directors grants and revokes rights
to sign the business name as well as powers of procuration
The holders of powers of procuration sign the business
name two together or each separately with one member of
the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors meets on average 8-10 umes per
year The Board of Directors mert ten tumies in 2004 The ave-
rage attendance percentage of the members of the Board
of Directors at the meeungs of the Board was 95

The President & CEQ of Finnair Plc, or a senior member of
Finnair Group management nominated by the President and
CEQ, acts as the presenung officer at meenngs of the Board
of Directors The Finnair Group’s SVP, Legal Affairs Tero
Palatsi acts as secretary to the Board of Directors The Board
of Directors evaluates its working pracuices regularly

The Board Charter can be viewed at Finnair Group’s
Internet site http //www finnairr com/investor

Commuttees

The Board of Directors has established a Safary and Ap-
pontments Committee as well as a Audit Committee The
Salary and Appomtments Committee consists of Chairman
of the Board Christoffer Taxell as well as Members of the
Board Kar: Jordan and Samul Haapasalo President & CEQ




Kenjo Suila acts as the presenung officer The commitree met
three umes in 2004

The Audit Committee consists of Markku Hyvarinen
as chairman as well as Helena Terho and Kaisa Vikkula as
members The committee met once in 2004

The Finnair Group's SVP, Legal Affairs Tero Palatsi acts as
secretary to the both committees The Committee Charters
can be viewed at Finnair Group’s Internet site htrp //www
finnair com/investor

Remuneration and other benefits
The monthly remuneration and attendance allowances de-
cided by the Annual General Meeting for Members of the
Board of Directors in 2003 were
» Chairman’s monthly remuneration
3,000 euros/month
* Vice Chairman’s monthly remuneration
1,600 euros/month
+ Member of the Board’s monthly remuneration
1,400 euros/month

* Atendance allowance 200 euros/ meeung/person

The Board of Directors are enutled to a daily allowance
and compensaton for travel expenses i accordance with
Finnair Plc’s general cravel rules In addition, Members of
the Beard of Directors have a inmited right to use ID tickecs
w accardance with Finnawr Plc’s 1D ucket rules

The members of Finnair Plc’s Board of Directors were
patd monthly remuneration and attendance allowarces to-
talling 143,400 eurcs in 2004

President & CEO and Deputy CEQ

Finnair Plc has a President & CEQ, whaose task 1s ta man-
age the company’s operations according to gurdelines and
instructions ssued by the Board of Direcrors The Board
of Drrectors appoints and dismisses the President & CEQ
and decides on his/her terms of employment The Board
of Directors also appaints and dismisses the Depury CEQ
Finnair Plc’s President & CEQ 15 Keljo Suila and its Deputy
CEO 15 EVP & COO Henrik Arle

President & CEQ Keyjo Suila was paid a total of 560,104
euros in salary, bonuses and fringe benefits in 2004 EVP
& COO Henrik Arle was paid a total of 215,856 euros in
salary, bonuses and fringe benefits in 2004

The President & CEQ and the Deputy CEQ have the
nght to retire at the 60 years of age on a full pension of 60
per cent of pensionable salary The President & CEO’s and
the Deputy CEQ’s contracts may be terminated with a pe-
nod of nouce of s months 'n addimon to salary for the
period of rnouce, they are entitled to severance compen-

sation equivalent to 12 months’ salary, if the contract s
terrminated for reasons independent of them

Group Management

The Finnair Group has a Group Management Its Chairman
15 President & CEO Keyo Suila and its other members are
Eero Ahola, Mauri Annala, Henrk Arle, Hannes Bjurstrom,
Christer Hagiund, Lasse Heinonen (as of 1 October 2004)
Juha Kinnunen, Anssi Komulainen, Tero Palatsi, Petri Pentt
(until 17 August 2004), Mika Perho, Tero Vauraste and
Jarmo Vilenus

The Group Management meets 8-10 umes a year and its
tasks include handhng of group-wide development projects
as well as group-level principles and procedures [n addi-
von, the Board of Management is informed about, among
other things, the business plans of sector companies, fi-
nancial performance as weil as matters to be dealt with
by Finnair Plc’s Board of Directors, in the prepararion of
which It participates

Matters refating ro the remuneranon scheme of members
of the Group Management are considered in the Board of
Directors’ Remuneration and Appointments Comimittee
Decisions are made by the company’s Board of Directors
Management incentive bonuses are determined annually
based on the company’s earnings per share, business-unit
quality and process indicators as well as persoral perfor-
mance apprasals The banus can be equivalent at mostto
four months’ basic salary

The option scheme for Group key personnel has been
replaced by a share-based incentive plan The mncentive planis
based on the Group’s Earnings per Share and on the Group’s
Return on Capital Employed The Board of Directors estab-
lishes the target levels each year

Finnair Pic’s Management Board

Management Board of Finnair Plc consists of the Group
Management and three staff representanives

Corporate Governance of subsidiaries

The members of the boards of directors of the most sig-
nificant subsidiaries are selected from individuals be-
longing to Finnair Group management as well as from
representatives propcsed by the personnel groups The
key tasks of the boards of directors of subsidiaries are
strategy preparation, approving the operational plan and
budget, and deciding on invesiments and commitments
within the limits of instructions 1ssued by the Board of Di-

rectors of Finnair Plc




Auditors and momtoring

Auditors
The company has at least two and at most four audrtors elected
by the Annual General Meeung The auditors’ term of office
1s the company's financral year and the auditors’ duties end
atthe conclusion of the Annual General Meeting following the
meeting of their electon At least one of the auditors mustbe
an authonised public accountant or an authonsed accounting
firm approved by the Central Chamber of Commerce Finnair
Pic’s Annual General Meeung in 2004 elecred two regular au-
ditors, namely Authornsed Accounting Firm Pricewaterhouse-
Coopers Oy and APA Erkki Maki-Ranta Erkki Maki-Ranta died
on 24 August 2004 The auditors of Finnair Group subsidiaries
are mainly PricewarerhouseCoopers firm auditors or auditors
employed by them

In 2004 the Group’s auditors were paid auditing fees to-
talling 167,000 euros Finnair Ple also paid auditors 110,000
euros for services (taxation and IFRS consulung) unrelated

to the staturory audst of the accounts

Momtoring and reporting system
The principal task of the stacutory auditis to verify thar the
financial scatements give accurate and sufficient informa-
non about the Group’s result and financial pasinon for the
financial year The auditors report thewr findings to the Board
of Directors once per year and submic an auditors’ report
to company’s shareholders in connecuon with the annual
financial starements

The company has a risk management steering group,
chaired by the President & CEO, whose task Is to assess and
safeguard the sufficiency, appropriateness and effectiveness
of the Group’s nsk management, monitoring and manage-
mernt processes

The Board of Directors of Finnawr Plc has approved principles
of internal monitoring, which are applied within the Group
Internal Auditing is responsible for fulfilling the monitoring and
auditing obligation laid down in the Comparies Act

Internal auditing assists in verifying the integrity of trans-
acuons and the accuracy of informauion in internal and
external accounung and to confirm that controls are exer-
cised effectively, property 1s mantained and eperations are
conducted appropriately in accordance with the Group ob-
Jecuves Internal audiung also participates in the auditing of
Finnair Plc subsidiaries’ accounts in coliabaration with external
auditing The internal auditing priorities are determined in
accordance with the Group’s nisk management strategy

The fulfilment of financial targets 1s momitored by a sys-
tem of Group-wide reporung The reporting encompasses
realised data and up-to-date forecasts for a rolling 12-manth
period The accumulation of financial added value 15 moni-

tored monthly tn an internal reporung process The Group's
traffic performance is published in a monthly stock exchange
bulletin

Risks arising from operations in relating to property, inter-
ruptien, acaident and lrability have been covered by appro-

priate insurances

Governing provisions

Finnair Plc adheres to valid legislation, provisions 1ssued
under such legislation and the company’s Articles of Associa-
non Furthermare, in its actvities Finnair Plc complies with
the recommendauons of the Helsinkr Exchanges, the Central
Chamber of Commerce and the Confederation of Finnish
Industry and Employers on the admirustration and manage-

ment of listed companies as well as insider rules

Company insiders

According to the Securities Markets Act, Finnair Plc’s perma-
nentinsiders include members of the Feinnair Ple’s Board of
Directors, the Managing Director and hus deputy, members of
the Group Management and auditors, including the auditor
of carrying chief responsibility for the firm of auditors fnad-
diion, Finnair Plc’s permanent insiders also include individuals
working in positions specified by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc have approved Finnair
Plc’s insider guidelines, which contain guidelines for permanent
and project-work insiders and specify the orgamisation and
procedures of the company’s insider controls The company’s
insider guidelines have been distributed to all insiders

The legai affairs department s responsible for che con-
tent of the insider guidelines Compliance with the msider
guidelines 1s monitored by the economics and finance de-
partment The company operates a restriction on trading,
which applies to insiders’ trading in the company shares or
In securities granting entedement o shares for 14 days before
the declaravon of financial results

Finnair Plc’s insider register1s maintained by Finnish Cen-
tral Securities Depositery Ltd Up-to-date details of insiders’
shareholdings can be viewed at Finnish Central Secunives De-
pository Ltd’s premuses in Helsink at cthe address Umorinkatu
32 B and on the company’s website at the address hup //www

finnair com/investor

Corporate Governance update

The Finnar Corporate Covernance section 1s updated regularly
and can be viewed on the company’s website at the address
heep /fwww finnair com/finvestor Finnair Plc’s website is pub-
lished in Finnish and English, as 1s the printed annual report

The eleccranuc annual report is also published in Swedish



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2004

Chnistoffer Taxell, b 1948, LL M, Chancellor of Abo Akadem: -
Unwversity, Chatrrman of the Boards of the Confederation for
Finrish Industries, Abo Akadems Uriversity Foundauon and
Orgamvsation Foreningen Konstsamfundet, Board Member of
Raisio Group Plc, Sampo Plc, Stockmann Ple, Hormos Medi-
cal Corp , Nordkalk Corp , Boliden AB, Finrush Business and
Policy Forum (EVA), the Research Institute of Finmish Economy
Kaisa Vikkula, b 1960, D Sc (Econ ), Board Member of {ETLA), Chawrman of the Beard of Finnair Plc since 2003 2,000
Finnair Plc since 2003 2,000 Finnair shares Finnair shares

Samuli Haapasalo, b 1952, LL M , Director-General at the Ministry of Transport and Communications, Board Member of
Finland Post Corporanion, Vice Chairman of the Baard of The Helsinki Deaconess Institute, Board Member of Finnair Plcsince
1999 0 Finnair shares

N
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Helena Terho, b 1948, M Sc {Eng }, eMBA, Vice President,
Competence Development, Kene Corporaton, Member of
Advisory Board of Nordea Bank Finland, Board Member
of Finnair Plc sincc 1897 0 Finnair shares
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Markku Hyvarmen, b 1948, Deputy CEO of Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company, Deputy Chairman of the Board of
Mutual Insurance Company Kaleva, Board Member of If Skadeforsakring Holding AB (publ ), Member of Finnair Supervisary
Board 1992-1997, Chairman of Finnair Superwvisory Board 1997-2003, Board Member of Finnair Plc since 0 Finnair shares

Vel Sundback, b 1946, LL M , Member of the
Nolia Group Executive Board, Seior Vice President,
Corporate Relatons and Responsibility, Nokia
Corporauon, Secretary of State at the Mimstry
for Foreign Affairs 1993-1995, Chairman of rhe
Board of Huhtamaky Qyy, Member of the Executve

Commurtee of the Board of the Confederation of

¥

Finrush Industres, Vice Chairman of the Board of P
the Technology Industries of Finland, Vice Chair ié“an
KariJordan, b 1956, B Sc (Econ), President and CEO of Metsalnto man of the Board of the International Chamber E:f:gi
Cooperauve and Deputy to the President of the Metsalutte Group, Member of Commerce, Finnish secton, Member of the ;
of the Supervisory Boards of Finrush Business and Policy Forum (EVA) and Managerment Team of the UN Informauon and
the Research lnsutute of the Finmish Economy (ETLA), Board Member of Commurnication Technology Task Force, Chair-
Julus Tallberg -Kinteistot Oy), Member of the Executive Board of Siemens man of the Board of the Finland-China Trade
Qy, Vice Chairman of Finnarr Plc since 2003 0 Finnair shares Association, Board Member of Finnair Pic since
2004 0 Finnair shares

Auditors :
e

Regular auditors Deputy Auditor p
APA Jorma Hekkinen and PricewaterhouseCoopers firm of  APA Jyn Heikkinen, PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd €14
3
auditors, APA Eero Suomela as main accountable auditor %




GROUP MANAGEMENT DEC 31, 2004

Keijo Suila, b 1943, B Sc (Econ ), President and CEQ, served with Finnair since 1998 7,100 Finnar

shares, 240,000 opuons

Tero Palatsi, b 1947, LL Lic , SVP, Admimistration and Human
Resources, served with Finnair since 1999 O Finnair shares,

50,000 optrons

Christer Haglund, b 1959, BA, SVP, Communicatons, served
with Finnair since 2000 1,000 Finnair shares, 60,000 opuons

\.

HennkArle, b 1948, LL M , Deputy CEQ, COO, EVP, Scheduled
Passenger Traffic, served with Finnarr since 1979 2,000 Finnair
shares, 93,000 opuons

JuhaKinnunen, b 1548, SVP, Cargo, Managing Director, Finnarr
Cargo Oy, served with Finnair since 1969 0 Finnair shares,
20,000 opnions

JarmoVileniws, b 1950, M Sc (Eng ), SVP, Techrucal Services, served with Finnair

since 1973 54 Finnair shares, 80,000 opuons

Maun Annala, b 1945, M 5S¢ (Econ), EVP, Leisure Traffic and Travel Serwnces, served with Finnait since 1976

0 Finnair shares, 80,000 opuons

\

Anssi Komulainen, b 1964, M 5S¢, SVP, Catering, Managing
Director, Finnair Catening Oy, served with Finnair 1989 1995 and
again since 2001 0 Finnair shares, 35,000 opuons

Lasse Heinonen, b 1968, M 5¢ (Econ), SVP and CFQ, served
with Finnar since 2004 0 Finnair shares, 10,000 options

Hannes Bjurstrom, b 1950, colonel ret , SVP, Flight Operanons, served
with Finnarr since 1999 0 Finnair shares, 60,000 opuons

Tero Vauraste, b 1967, Lieutenant Senior Grade ret , M Sc , SVP,
Ground Handling, Managing Director, Northpart Oy, served with
Finnair since 2001 200 Finnair shares, 25,000 opuons

Mika Perho, b 1959, BBA, SVP, Markenng, served with Finnair
since 1985 268 Finnair shares, 100,000 options

Eero Ahola, b 1943, M Sc {(Econ), SVP, Corporace Business
Development and Strategy, served wath Finnair since 1970 0

Finnair shares, 80,000 opuons




ON THE ROAD TO SUSTAINABLE, PROFITABLE GROWTH

Finnair plays an important role in 1ts operanng areas at
home and abroad Formore than 80 years, Finnair’s route
network has expanded as Finnish society and business hfe
have opened up to the world More than 170 million pas-
sengers have flown on blue and white wings

Finnair has significant expectanions to fulfil in its role in
socety A glittering history is no guarantee of future success
Today and in the future, Finnair must be able to meet the
growing, diverse needs of Finmish and imternauonal custom-
ers This is possible only if operations are competitive and
profitable in the long term

A comprehensive route network, an effictent fleet and
expert personnel are also the cornerstones of future acav-
ity Development must take place, however, 1n harmony
with the surrounding society and environment That 1s why
Finnair's business objective 1s to achieve sustainable, prof-
itable growth

Air transport - a part of modern society

Finnair also wishes to sumulate discussion on new aspecrs
of air transport and ics right to exist

Efficient transport inks and services are a prerequisite of
modern society Finnair, with 1ts hughly efficient and extensive
route network, 1s an important part of the structure and
competitiveness of Finnish society Direct links to 40 in-
ternational and 16 domestc destinations, plus 60 leisure
fhght destnanons, consutute an excepuonally diverse route
network

Air transport in Finland 1s the only form of public trans-
port that does not need taxpayers’ support Finnarr, indeed,
finances a significant part of Finland’s arr transport infra-
structure and generates for society rax revenues as well as
financral profit

Finnair directly employs more than 9,000 people, and
indirectly thousands more, in different parts of Finland and
the world Rapidly growing Asian traffic has provided work
formore than a thousand Finnair employees

Compenitien the engine of sustainable development

Only a financially compeutive company has what it takes to
fuifil its social obligations Air transportis an extremely com-
petitive sector th which operatng conditions are changing
very quickly Surprising, unforeseen events can in a instant
present the entre Industry with new challenges

Over the years, Finnair has had to make painful deci-
stons to preserve the company's viability and in order to
secure sustainable competitiveness and high service quality
for the future, too

Pursuing responsible profitabifity and a sustainable growth
strategy creates the financial health that enables future in-
vestments to be made Taking the demands of sustainable

development more widely into account:n air ransport and
tourism s a guiding principle in Finnair’s deasion-making A
large-scale environmentally positive fleet renewal programme
began in 1999 and will continue into the next decade

The charitable partnership of Finnair and UNICEF aver
the last ten years s indicative of Finnair’s desire to make a
tangible impact in areas where conditions for hfe are not
automacically wachin reach

No shart cut to responsibility

Finnair’s reputanon as a high quality and respensible Finmish
operator s the result of many years of goal-directed work
Operating successfully 1s a challenge even during periods of
steady growth, to say nothing of the turbulence encountered
during the external shocks of recent years

Social responsibility 1s a fundamental atutude, a way
of warking and responding to the expectanians placed on
a company’s acovities Finnair aims to belong to the elite
in terms of quality, to bear its responsibilities and o act as

a good example

THE CUSTOMER IS THE KEY

Open, honest treatment of customers and expert, friendly
service underlie the operauons of a reliable, puncrual airline
In every situanion Finnair, too, must do all it can to proemote
safety and passenger comfort

During 2004 Finnair Group airlines carried more than
eight million passengers, of whom 62 per cent were Finns
and 38 per cent ciizens of other countries In 2004 the
rapidly growing Asian routes accounted for 616,400 pas-
sengers, of whom 19 per cent were Finns Duning the year
Finnair carried 51 per cent more Japanese passengers, who

representan expandlng customer group

Punctual and comfartable travel

Finnair aims to be a quality, reliable and responsible air-
hne Customer sansfaction in 2004 was again excellent
In a companson of European airlines, Finnair was ranked
first for business class on European routes in the summer
of 2004 Finnair was also Europe’s most puncrual airline
(AEA, arrival punctuality)

The continuing fleet renewal programme plays a key
rale in the service quality experienced by the customer
Whth modern aircraft and technology, Finnair strives to
enhance service efficiency and passenger comfort Signifi-
cant steps forward in this respect have been the acquisition
of the Airbus A320 fleet and investment in Embraer 170
Jet aircraft A young, modern fieet also delivers a higher

level of safety




Finanaie and Society

Finnair Communicauons Officer Senya Larsen led Finmush writers on a wsit to Nepal to meet girls who are recenang an educauon with the money coltected

Finnair has participated for a decade now in the
UNICEF Change for Good collection. The project has
been collecting money for girls’ education in Nepal




Customers’ wellbeing and safery

Aviation medical services have developed significantly in Finnair
in recent years Finnair has invested in medical equipment
used on arrcraft and in the medical traiming of fight per-
sonnel The standard of medical equipment on long-haul
flights 1s clearly higher than that required by air transport
regulations

Cooperation with the company MedLink World Doctor
ensures that advanced special care can, if necessary, be given
to a customer who falls Il Medbink’s 24/7 in-flight access
means that medical specialists can be contacted during a
fhighr as the situation requires

The tsunami that struck Indonesia, Sri Lanka and south-
western parts of Thailand on 26 December 2004 caused
widespread destruction Immedately and on its own imitiative,
Finnair began evacuation measures o repatriate thousands of
Finns In the Finnair Group, thousands of arline and Aurinko-
matkat-Suntours employees helped those in distress, both
in the affected areas and in Finland Finnair’s experienced
and responsive emergency management team as well as its
24-hour preparedness were of great help in construcung an
overview of the situauon and reacting quickly

MOTIVATED PERSONNEL ARE
THE KEY TO SUCCESS

The goal of Finnair human resources management s to sup-
port the sustainable, profitable growth strategy of the enure
Group The starting pomntis a management approach that
encourages the development of employees’ performance,
expertise and well-being in work Finnair’'s operating prin-
ciples are based mainly on recommendauons for ethical
behaviour 1ssued by the Internatonal A Transport Asso-
cation IATA

Finnair operates in an industry in which expert, mot-
vated staff are excepuionally important for success The
company requires from its staff loyalty and a commitment
to set objectives

Working in an air transport profession i1s now and then
physically and mentally demanding Safeguarding, maintain-
ing and developing well-being both in the long and short
term are the key tasks and challenges of human resources
management

Management of key skifls the objective

Finnar implements a goal-directed human resources strategy
Finnair is increasingly adopring a process-based approach
ro working, 1n which the company’s and the indmidual’s
goals are speaified more precisely in terms of performance
and expertise

In 2004 the company initiated an extensive payroll and work-
time management reform project, which aims to standardise
target secting and performance measurement within the
Group’s differenturits Performance management has been
improved and deepened by providing supervisars with ef-
fecuve tools

High quality basic serwices are prowided to international
customers in the customers’ own languages Finnair has, for
a long ume now, utihsed internatonal, professional service
personnel on those routes where culwral and language dif-
ferences are parocularly demanding The need for this s
greater In the growing Asian traffic

The company's professional, inguistcally skilled per-
sonnel have received much praise from customers and they
have been an important factor in implementing the Asian
strategy Paying due attenuon to cultural differences is not
only a matter of customerservice, bur alsc a safety 1ssue

Safeguarding the safery of personnel and cuscomers
1s fundamental to Finnair’s operations Safety 1s part of
Finnair’s culture and the everyday life of each employee
Every Finnair employee has a duty in their work to adhere
to an uncompromising safery philosophy

Common game rules

Finnair requires its employees in thewr work to conform to
high moral and ethical standards Finnairaspires to an ab-
solutely equal, trouble-free working environment, in which
no-one 1s discriminated agamst on grounds of gender,
conviction, age, skin colouror ongin

During autumn 2004, Finnair has made a close analysis
of themes, such as values and strategy, that play a central
role in directing its activities The airline industry has been
subjected to enormous change over the last few years It has
been appropriate to consider how the company's present
corporate structure and values support the strategy of
sustainable, profitable growth in altered circumstances

AVERAGE PERSOMNNEL
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A common understanding about objectives and working
pracuices will become a key success factor in an intensely
compettve chimate

Representanves of the employer and employees siton a
working group set up to reformulate values Interaction has
also been sought wia internal communications, where there
has been a lively debate about values The Finnair Group

will present the revamped values during 2005

WE BORROW THE WORLD
FROM OUR CHILDREN

The raw materials of any holiday trip are environmenc and
culture Tourism brings to travel destinations income, employs
vast numbers of peaple, helps preserve historical attracuons,
cultural sstes and local fauna, and promotes interaction
between different cuitures Unconsidered and uncontrolled
tourism, however, can spoil a holiday desuination’s environ-
ment, exhaust nacural resources, disturb the natural wildlife
and offend the local poputation

Since 1999 Aurinkomatkat-Suntours has been imple-
menting a programme whose goal 1s to make leisure travel
sustainable Fora tour operater this s sensible from a busi-
ness perspective, because no-one wants to travel to a spotled
environment or witness a myriad of sacial prablems The
future of our tourism 1s dependent on the state of the envi-
ronment, culture and society at holiday destinations

Aunnkomatkat-Suntours’ scaff are tramned to take the
challenges of sustainable tounsm into account Contractual
partners in destination countries are also offered traming
and informanon Before their journey, all customers receve
a destination booklet giving practical advice on how, as
tourists, they can protect the nature and local culture of
their holiday destinanion

Cooperation among competitors

Aurinkomatkat-Suntours 1s actively involved in establish-
ing the Tour Operator Initiative for Sustainable Tourism
Development (TOI), a joint project of UNESCO, the UN's
environment project UNEP, the WTO (World Tourism Or-
ganisation) and tour operarors Compenng tour operators
have thus combined their energies with UN orgarisations
to safeguard the future of their business

In collaboration with the Global Reporung Iminative (GRI),
the joint project has prepared for the tour operator sector
1ts own sustainable development reporung indicators In
addinion, pilot projects to develop sustainable tourism have
been iniuiated at Side in Turkey, Punta Canain the Dominican
Republic, Agadir in Morocco and the Itacare area in Brazl

Tools for the sustainable management of tour operators’
production chains have also been prepared

The TO1 has produced a guidebook on sustainable hotel
management for the accommodauon sectorin collaboraton
with the Centre for Environmental Leadership in Business
The bock has been distnibuted to 30,000 hotels worldwide
In additien, the TOI has published an instruction booklet
on sustaable tounsm for manne and coastal area as well
as a handbock on the integration of sustainable tourism
INto tour operatars’ activities

Aurinkomatkat-Suntours knows its responsibilities

Aunnkomatkat-Suntours has signed a commitment to fight
against the sexual abuse of children The company has a
clause i all of its hotel agreements stating that the agree-
ment can be terminated if the hotel permits child sex trade
Inits area

Aurinkomarkart-Suntours also employs a 35-point sus-
tainable tourism check-list when making agreements with
hotels The check-list1s used to gather infermauon, among
other things, about ownership structure, environmental pro-
grammes, management of water, waste, wastewater and en-

ergy, procurement policy and commuruty relationships

ENVIRONMENTAL WORK IN
A SENSITIVE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

The interaction of arr transport and the environment can be
significantly enhanced by modern aircraft and technology,
high quabty environmental management and a corporate
culture that respects the environment Finnair operates
amidst the sensitoive and unique nature of the Nerth, which
requires a quality approach to environmental acovity Finnarr,
maoreover, wishes to be one of Europe’s leading asrlines in
environmental matters

The milestones of environmental work in 2004 were the
decision to acquire a new type of aircraft, the Embraer E170,
environmental auditing of the Group's operations, more
efficient collection of energy waste, and parncipaton in an
air transport MIPS research project (Martenal Impact Per
Serwvice, the use of natural matenals in service provision)}

Engine emissions, flight notse and

waste management the key challenges

Aresponsible and open environmental policy 1s a permanent
feature of the company’s way of doing business Finnair pays
spectal attention to the most pressing environmental chal-
lenges, which are arcraft notse, engine emissions and waste
management These are addressed through invesoing




Marja West, Anja Sarin and Marja Hirvonen in the Finnair Choar givng a Christmas concert

Finnair employees are active on the hobby front
Finnair has dozens of clubs and societies of various
kinds The Finnair Choir’s Christmas concerts are
popular among music lovers year after year.
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in an efficient, environmentally sound fleet, developing the
effectveness of the airport environment, training personnel
and promotng a highly tuned, value-based ervironmental
philosephy throughouc the entire orgamsation Partners
are required to pay similar attention to environmental mat-
ters

Fleet renewal the cornerstone of envircnmental work

International air traffic 1s forecast to grow further in the
future In terms of competitiveness and the environment it
i1s therefore important to operate with a fleet thatloads the
ermironment to the minimum possible extent Finnair has, in
financially challenging conditiens, systematically continued
the long-term, environmentally sound modernisanion of its
fleet This 1s only possible, however, If operational profit-
ability 1s maintained

The Atrbus A320 series aircraft acquisiion programme,
which was concluded during 2004, and the decision to in-
vestin Embraer E170 aircraft will have a significant impace
on Finnair's environmental work The modern fleet 1s more
efficient and environmentally sound The CFM-engines of
the new Airbus A320 fleec fulfil the future emissions critersa
decided upon in autumn 2004, and the aircraft’s economic
fuel consumprion and low carbon dioxide emissians
support Finnair’s efforts to meet the enissions targets
set for air transport

FUEL BURN {KG) PER
PASSENGER PER 100 KM

Internanonal guidelines and cooperation

In all its actwittes Finnair adheres to current environmen-
tal legislation and the environmental protection principles
of the Internatronal Cwvil Aviation Organisacion [CAQ As
a member of the Internatronal Air Transport Association
IATA, the company is afso cormmitted to reducing the envi-
ronmental effects of its operations in an econamically rea-
sonable manner without jeopardising air safety in addition
to legislatron and international commitments, successful
environmental work 1s based on voluntary action and in-
dependentininative, taking the special features of the local
operating environment INto account

Greenhouse gas emissions and
waste management the prionities for 2005
Finnairwill also be acuvely involved in improving the man-
agement of air transport greenhouse gas emissions durning
2005 Decisions made in order to find a fuel-efficient and
suitable fleet for Finnair’s route nerwork have proved to be
correct from an environmental standpoint Finnair has been
able to keep key figures describing environmental efficiency,
such as fuel consumpuon and carbon dioxide emissions per
passenger kilometre, at low levels

Particular atrencion will be paid to the qualty and quanury
of waste during 2005 In terms of future material streams,
the company will increasingly select products which are recy-
clable and which load the environment as little as posstble
Priority areas mclude cabin service and technical services

NITROGEN OXIDE AND CARBON
THOXIDE ERISSIONS
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Financial Sratiments

REPORT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

General Review

Demand in the sector has recovered from the external shocks
of recent years Average growth in demand for European asr-
lines was more than mine per cent in 2004 Overcapacity has
reduced the average price The price competition prevailing
in the Nardic market in parucular has undermined airlines’
profitabihity

Eight new compeutitors have entered Finnair’s domestc
market during the last two years OF these, four have already
stopped operating in Finland Those that remain are not
operating profitably in current market conditions

In the new compettive situation, Finnair moved from de-
fence to atcack i autumn 2003 Under its chosen strategy,
Finnair achieved strong growth and improved load factors
The pricing reform iniwated by Finnairin autumn 2003 sharply
increased scheduled traffic demand and passenger load factors
Scheduled traffic demand grew by 26 6 per cent, which s triple
the average growth for European airlines The load factor for
scheduled traffic rose 4 6 percentage units, which is the best
performance among European airlines

Growth i1 demand was boosted by the price reform im-
plemented in Seprember 2003 and strong growth in Asian
traffic as well as by the operations in Scandinavia of the fly-
nordic airline {formerly Nordic Airlink), acquired at the end
of 2003 The fall in the average price was halted 1n the final
quarter of 2004

To imgprove profitability, Finnair contnued its 160 nullion
euro operational efficiency programme, which began in spring
2003 The savings achieved were consumed by a steep increase
in fuel prices, the iImpact of which was accentuated in the final
quarter Fiwnar paid an extra 54 4 million euros in fuel costs
compared to 2003

in September the programme to acquire 29 Airbus A320
series aircraft was completed In June the company made the
decision to place an order for twelve 76-seat Embraer E170
aircraft ra meet domestic and European scheduled passenger
traffic needs

Finnair’s Leisure Traffic had a successful year in 2004
A raimy summerin Finland sumulated demand for holidays i

the sun in the summer and eariy autumn The natural catastro-
phe that took place on Boxing Day in Southeast Asia resulted
i rearrangements in feisure travel Some journeys intended
for Southeast Asia were switched from areas affecred by the
destruction to other desunatons in the Canary Islands and
South America The financial impact on cthe Finnair Croup 1s
not signficant

Financial Result

The Group'’s result after financial items was 11 2 millon eu-
ros The corresponding figure for the previous yearwas -21 7
milion euros Operating profit before depreciation, aircraft
leasing payments and capital gains (EBITDAR) improved 25 3
per cent to 155 3 million euros (155 9 million) The EBITDAR
margin was 11 S per cent, compared with 10 0 per cent the
previcus year

Turnover grew by 9 0 per cent to 1,698 4 mullion euros Uit
revenues for passenger traffic dechned by 10 4 per cent and
umet revenues for cargo wraffic dechned by 111 per cent Unit
revenues for traffic overall declined by 11 2 per cent

Operanng costs rose during the financial year by 5 5 per
cent and units cost for flight operations fell by 11 9 per cent
The aim of the operational efficency programme initiated
in spring 2003 1s to cut unit costs by at least 15 per cent during
2003-2005 The programme overall has proceeded according
to plan and dunng 2003-2004 around two thirds of the 160
million eurc savings were achieved

Significant cost increases were In fuel costs, by 34 4 per
cent, and in traffic charges, by 22 § per cent The largestitems
contribuong to the fall in uriz costs were achieved by Finnair’s
own measures in personnel costs (-22 3%), sales and marketing
costs (-16 0%) and, due to aircraft modermsation and changes
in traffic mix, fleet maintenance costs (-19 3%)

Personnel costs fell by 6 8 per cent The decrease in per-
sonne} costs was achieved partly by the personnel reduction
programme, which cut staff numbers by 1,200 1n 2003-2004,
and an amendment to Finnair’s Pension Fund rules, which
meant that the change in pensien hability in 2004 was lower
than anucipated The combined effect of the rule amendment
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and a change 1n the Employees’ Penston Actis a non-recurning
improvement in the result of around 20 million euros The
proporuon of the Group’s total operaung costs accounted for
by personnel costs dechned to 271 per cent, compared with
30 6 percentin 2003

Capital gains on sales of fixed assets totalled 12 0 million
euros (22 1 million} Return on capital employed was 3 7 per
cent (0 0%} and return on equity 2 0 per cent (-2 5%) Earn-
ings per share were 0 14 euros, compared with -0 19 euros the
previous year At the end of the finanaal year, equity per share
was 7 29 euros (7 24)

Investments, financing and sk management

Capital invesuments excluding advance payments for the financial
year totalled 114 5 mullion euros (82 3 miliion) Investments
include the purchase of two new Arrbus A320 series aircraft
in February and September 2004 A further two new Airbus
A320 arcraft as well as one Boeing MD-11 wide-bodied arcraftc
were acquired on long-term operational lease agreements

Operanional cash flow, excluding capiral gains, was 100 ¢
millton, compared with 59 6 mullion euros a year earlier
At the end of the financial year, the Group’s liquid cash reserves
stood at 2971 4 million euros and exceeded interest-bearing
debt by 34 million euros The gearing ratio has improved from
-2 9 per centac the beginning of the financial year to -5 S per
cent, adjusted for arcraft leasing obligations, gearing improved
to 95 § per cent (102 7%) The equity ranio 1s 42 7 per cent
(44 4%) The figures are clearly better than the targets set by
the Board of Direcrors

In May 2004 the company arranged with an internatonal
bank syndicate a new five-year unsecured credit faclity of 200
million euros, which at the end of the financial year had not
been used atall

In June the company made the decision to acquire twelve
76-seat Embraer E170 aircraft, to be delivered between
auturnn 2005 and spring 2007, to meet domesuic and European
traffic needs In addiion, the company has options far eight
other Embraer aircraft The new aircraft will gradually replace
the remaining Boeing MD-80 and ATR-72 aircraft The arrcraft

acquisition programme will reduce the number of aircraft types
in Finnair’s fleet

According to the financial risk management policy approved
by the Board of Directors, the company’s objective is to hedge
more than half of scheduled traffic’s aviation fuel purchases
during the following six months and thereafter the following
12 months with a decreasing level of hedging

The trend of the US dollar exchange rate has an impact on
the market value of the Group’s aircraft fleet According to
calculations at the closing date, book values do not require
recogninon of impairment losses

The weakening of the US dollar against the euro has a posi-
uve impact on Finnair’s operatonal result and strengthening
has a negative impact, because the company has more dollar-
linked costs than revenue

Shares and Share Capital

During 2004 the highest price for the Finnair Plc share on the
Helsinki Exchanges was 6 57 euros, while the lowest price was
4 46 euros and the average price 5 40 euros The market value of
the company’s shares was 471 3 million euros on 31 Decernber
2004 Acthe beginning of the Ainancial year the market value was
449 1 mullion euros During 2004, some 21 3 midlion (17 8 muflion)
of the company’s shares were traded on the Helsinki Exchanges
Acthe end of the period under review, the Finrush State owned
S8 4 per cent of the company’s shares, while 18 4 per cent were
held by foreign investors orin the name of a nominee

The Annual General Meeung on 7 Aprif 2004 granted
the Board of Directors the authonty for a period of one year
to acquire and transfer a maximum of 4,100,000 of the compa-
ny's own shares The authonsauon applies to shares amounting
to less than five per cent of the company’s share capital

The Board of Directors deaided on 18 June 2004 to start
purchasing the company’s own shares Acquisitions began on
1 July 2004 and by 31 December 2004 a total of 422,800 shares
had been purchased for 2 3 mithon euros At the end of the pen-
od, therefore, 0 5 per cent of shares were held by the company

Two series of Finnair Plc opuen nghts are traded on the
Main List of the Helsinki Exchanges Both Series A and Series
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CAPITAL GAINS AND EXPENSES
3 2004
EUR mill - % of turnover EUR muif { 2004 EUR mult - of turmaver EURmill - of turrover
250 14 60 120 14 12 0s
100+ 71 12 0\

\ 1z 50 E__h

a0 ! 10 L1 01
PR —— L Py g\ 01,

|
W i L —
150!‘._....3 s “"“A‘QT. | 60\1 8 4]
}E'U{ - 0 U [ sl 11 6 2] 04
wo! ] H Wi_ 5 , H l i ! 20 ! 4 ol |
’ P 0. Ly - 2 Db
soH_iUJhL . " l [ [ i m‘vlf i” 2 PRI
Wb ST A ==
01 H t 1 0 g } L 40 \d -2 2 14
00 01 02 03 04 Q1Qz Q3 Q4 00 01 0z 03 04 00 01 02 03 04

SliEaaavig EFIJUEIEI:I



Financial Statemencs

51

B each have 2,000,000 opuion rights, a total of 4,000,000
units Trading in Finnair Ple 2000 B aption rights (a rotal
0f 2,000,000 units) commenced on the Main List of the Helsinki
Exchanges on 3 May 2004 During 2004 no option rights were
used to subscribe for shares On 31 December 2004 a total
of 3,997,500 opuon nghts were in airculavon These option
nghts can be used to subscribe for 3,997,500 shares, equivalent
to 4 72 per cent of the company’s shares

If all the option ceraficates in arculation on 31 December
2004 were exchanged for Finnair Pic shares, the Finmish Stace’s
holding would be 55 8 per cent On the basis of the option
ceruficates in airculauon on 31 December 2004, the com-
pany’s share capital could rise by not more than 3,397,875
euros, corresponding to 3,997,500 shares

On 31 December 2004 the company bocked in full a pro-
wision for social security expenses ansing from Series A and B
option nights, a total of 169,000 euros

Finnair Plcissued a 230 million Finnuish mark {38 7 mihon
euro) debenture loan in 1994 In 2004 the debenture loan was
converted into shares to the value of 84,094 euros, which cor-
responds 1o 13,550 Finnair Plc shares The Board of Direcrors
of Finnair Ple deaded to exercise 1ts nght 1o buy back the deben-
ture loan and on 2 September 2004 the company paid back to
debenture holders under the rerms of the loan 5 6 mithon eurcs
of debenture loan capital which had notbeen converted

Personnel

During the financial year, the average number of staff employed
by the Finnair Group amounted to 9,522 people, which was
4 6 per cent fewer than a year before Atyear end the number
of Finnair Group personnel was 9,430 (9,675) The dechnen
staff numbers 1s a result of measures implemented under the
cost-cutting programme as well as the transfer to partners of
certain functions, such as ground handhng and loading services
at domestic arports

The company has collectve labour agreements vahd untl
the end of Septerber 2007 with five labour unions Discussions
with cabin personnel and pilots are ongoing

PROFIT BEFORE EXTRA
ORDINARY ITEMS AND TAXES

CAPITAL EXPENDITURL (GROSS)
. Other capral expendiure

The Finnarr Group has a profit bonus scheme that allows
the employees of the parent company and certain subsidiar-
1es to participate in a profit bonus payable on the basis of the
Group’s resuk and return on capital employed A profir bonus
i1s pard into a Personnel Fund, which 1s obliged to wwvest part
of the bonus in Finnair PIc’s shares The precondinions for the
payment of profit bonus were not fulfilled lasc year However,
in recogmition of the employees’ parocutarly good perform-
ance in difficult conditions, the Board of Directors has decided
to make a transfer of 0 5 milhion euros to the Personnel Fund

The Group also operates an incentive scheme based on
a balanced scorecard, defined separately for each business unig,
which covers most of the Finnair Group's employees The toral
amount of bonuses in 2004 was 2 6 millon euros Provisions
totalling O 4 mtlhion euros have been made in the financial state-
ments for bonuses due under the management share bonus
scheme

Board of Directors

The Annual General Meeting held on 7 April 2004 re-elected
to the Board of Directors the following Christoffer Taxell
as Chairman and Kari Jordan (Vice Chairman), Samul Haa-
pasalo, Markku Hyvarinen, Helena Terho and Kaisa Vikkula
as members Vel Sundback was efected as a new member
The term of office of Board of Directors lasts unul the Annual
General Meeting following the Board’s election

Performance of the Divisians

From the beginning of 2004, a system of four divisional reports
has been adopted in external reporting The reporting dvisions
are Scheduled Passenger Traffic, Lewsure Traffic, Aviation Serv-
ices and Travel Services

Scheduled Passenger Traffic

This dwision 1s responsible for sales, service concepts, flight opera-
uons and the procurement and financing of arcraft Scheduled
Passenger Traffic leases to the Leisure Traffic division the crews
itrequires The division also leases cargo capacity for the use
of Finnair Cargo Oy In 2004 che units belonging to the dwisions

INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
AND LIQUID FUNDS

OPERATIONAL CASH FLOW
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were Finnair Scheduled Passenger Traffic, the feeder awrhne
Aero, the budget airlne Aynordic, Finnar Cargo Oy and Finnarr
Aircraft Finance Oy, which manages the Group’s fleet

In financial year 2004 the division’s turnover grew 10 9 per
centto 1,265 8 million euros The operaung loss, excluding
capital gains, was 26 8 million, compared with a loss of 44 3
million euros a year earher

A ughs market situation and price compeution contrib-
uted to a 14 6 per cent decline in unit revenues for scheduled
passenger traffic in 2004 The fall i unit revenues was halted
in the final quarter

Demand for Finnair's scheduled traffic grew strongly in
2004 Demand grew by 26 6 per cent over the year as awhole,
while capacity grew by 211 per cent, leading to a nse in pas-
senger load factor by 4 6 percentage points to 65 1 per cent
The growth of demand and increase in load factor were the
highest among European airlines

Finnair's market share in traffic between Asia and Europe
has grown Finnair's market share fell in domestic traffic follow-
ing the entry of new competitors into the market In European
traffic, Finnawr has mamtamed its market share

Scheduled traffic departure punctuality was 89 per cent and
again among the best n Europe In the previous year, departure
punctualicy was 91 per cent Arnval punceuality was 90 per cent,
which was bestin a companison of European airlines
The Estonian subsidiary Aero expanded its operauions by leasing
seven ATR 72 turbo-prop aircraft from Finnair Awrcraft Finance
Oy in addition to its two exisung aircraft At the same nme Fin-
nair transferred its entire turbo-prop traffic n south and cencral
Finland and the Baluc states to be handled by Aero

The budget airine flynordic has mcreased its market share
in the Scandinavian market flynordic flies from Stockholm Ar-
landa to four destinations in Sweden and also to Copenhagen
and Oslo In the next stage, flynordsc will open new routes from
Scandinavia to elsewhere in Europe In 2004 flynordic carried
725,000 passengers

In Novernber 2003, the operanions of Nordic East Airlink
Ab, which had been acquired by Finnair, were transferred
to Finnair's wholly-owned Nordic Airink Holding Ab, which

operates under the name flynordic Following cthe transfer,
Nordic East Arlink AB will be wound up through bankrupicy
proceedings This measure 1s due to discrepancies relaung to
the ume before Finnair's ownership and has no impact on
fiynordic’s operations

Finnair Cargo 1s respansible for the transport of arr freight
In its operations it unhses capacity on Finnair’s scheduled pas-
senger and leisure flights as well as Helsinki’s gateway status
Addinonal capacity for cargo routes has alsa been leased from
cargo operators outside the Group

Unit revenues for cargo traffic declined by 111 per cent
in 2004 The number of cargo kilos carried increased by 17 4
per cenc to 86 2 millon kilos Growth continued o be strong
in Asian traffic, where Finnair’s Boeing MD-11 long-haul air-
craft were utihsed Cargo capaaity leased from outside the
Group was increased gradually during the autumn, as new

cargo routes were opened

Lewsure Traffic

This diwision consists of Finnair Lersure Flights as well as che
Aurinkomatkat-Suntours package tour company, which s the
biggest in s field in Finland with a market share of more than
35 per cent Finnair Leisure Flights conunues to be a strong
market leader in lessure travel fights, even though more com-
petition has entered the market

In financial year 2004 the dmision’s turnover grew 8 3 per
cent to 354 6 million euros Unit revenues for Finnair Leisure
Flights declined by 2 2 per cent The dvsion’s aperating profit
improved to 26 § mithon euras (16 6 million euros) Growth
of demand and fewer last-minute discounts contributed to
Leisure Traffic’s good result

Leisure Traffic dermand rose by 8 5 per cent at the same time
as capacity was increased by 8 per cenc Passenger load factor
improvad by 0 4 percentage ponts to 89 1 per cent

Aviation Services

This division compnses aircraft maintenance services, ground
handiing and the Group’s catering operations as well as property
managerent and services related to Finnair business

RETURN ON CAPITAL
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Awiation Services’ turnover was unchanged at 413 3 mil-
lion euros The cost-cutung programme and implemented
adjustment measures led to an improvement in the dwision’s
operating profit, excluding capital gans, to 20 3 million euros
(16 5 milion euros) Aviation Services have achieved significant
improvernents in productivity

The functions of the Finnair Ground Handling business unit
were incorporated Into an independent company, Northport Oy,
on 1 May 2004 Northport Qy has a subsidiary, Finnhandling
AB, which operates in Sweden In cocperauon with partners,
the company provides ground handhing services fexibly and
cost-effecavely at Stockholm’s Arlanda Arrport

Travel Services

The dmsion consists of the Group’s domestic and foreign sravel
agency operations as well as the operanons of the reservations
systems suppher Amadeus Finland Oy

The diision’s turnaver grew 4 8 per centto 1 6 million
euros The increase in turnover was due to growth in demand
for travel and travel management services as well as the intro-
duction of service and transaction fees The division’s operaung
profitwas 6 5 million euros (3 5 milhon)

The travel agency sector has successfully adapted to a new
earnings logic since Finnair and several other airlines discon-
onued the paymant of comnmssions ac the end of 2003 The
travel agencies have developed new additional services and
have orgamsed centralised service centres

Services and Products

The Finnair route network consists of a comprehensive domestic
nenwork as well as an international network that includes more
than 40 desunatons, of which ten are on long-haul routes
Finnair's success in European scheduled passenger traffic 1s
based on the morming-evening concept favoured by business
passengers

Long-haul scrategy exploits Helsinki’s ideal posiuon on flight
routes between Asian and Europe In 2004 the weekly flight

DEVELOPMENT INOEX OF FUEL PRICE 2004

frequency on the Osaka and Shanghar routes was increased
from three to five Finnair now flies daily to Japan and twice
adayto China In September 2005, a new route to Canton ih
China witl open with three return flights per week

Finnair has doubfed 1ts number of Asian flights during the
last two years Due to higher passenger volumes, an expanded
Asian Terminal was opened at Helsinki-Vantaa Airport at the
end of August 2004 To increase passenger comforr, he-flat
sears will be installed i business class of long-haul route
Boeing MD-11 wide-bodsed arrcraft during 2005-2006

Finnai’s European route network is supplemented sub-
stannially by partner routes to Central and Seuthern Europe,
providing customers with efficient connections to all signifi-
cant desunations in Europe Bilateral cooperation with exsting
partners has been deepened

fn a new apening, Finnair began code-share cooperation
with the Russian airhne Aeroflot in the summer of 2004 As
a resule of this arrangement, capacity and connecting services
on the Helsinki and Moscow route will improve The compan-
1es will each continue to fly one return fught per day between
the cities, but the agreement prowdes both companies with
a morning and evening connection Both Finnair and Aeroflot
operate with Airbus aircraft

Cooperaton within the oneworld alliance generates both
savings and revenue for Finnair Finnair supplements the other
oneworld arlines’ capacity in traffic between Europe and the
Far East

Finnair’s electronic services have been developed for both
ticket sales and travel-related service needs On the Interne,
Finnair’s website 1s the Finmish travef industry’s most popular
e-commerce site The website’s serwices, which recerved a make-
over in February, cover bath leisure and business travel The
new services also offer companies the opportunigy to manage
and report on cheir travelling electromically

The electronic ucket, or e-ticket, 1s in use on all of Finnair's
domestic routes, on several European routes and on New York
fhghts Early in 2004, Finnair also introduced the e-ticket on
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to 1ts Bangkok, Singapore and Hong Kong routes in Finland
the e-ticket accounts for 90 per cent of all ickers sold Around
55 per cent of all fight uckers are now sold as e-tickets

A new serace exploiting the e-ucket was first introduced
for members of the Finnair Plus frequent-flyer programme
Passengers receive before their flights check-in information
auromatically in the form of a text message The passengers
only have to accept or reject the offered check-in Most cus-
tomers covered by the service are using it, and this is speeding
up departure formalities

Many atrlines have cut thew in-flight services or have started
to charge for them Based on feedback from customers, the
business class catering serwice on Finnair flights was renewed
and diversified In contrast with compeutors, a hot meal 1s
aiso served in economy class on all fights of more than two
hours

The am of the changes 15 to boost compeutveness Fin-
nair’s goal Is to provide Europe’s best cabin service This goal
was achieved in 2004 when Finnar’s business class service was
ranked Europe’s best in a survey of compeators Independent
evaluations also reveal Finnair’s general image to be among
the very bestin Europe

Cargo services have been developed by adding cargo links
to Central Europe and the Persian Gulf, enabling Finnair to
offer efficient logistics chains in intercontinental eraffic The
emphasis ts on traffic between Europe and Asiz I Novernber
Finnair opened a weekly cargo route between Helsinki and
Hong Kong

Introduction of IFRS rules

Finnair’s first IERS financial statement will be for 2005 The
key changes to accounting principles relate to pension ar-
rangements, maintenance capitalisation of the Group’s own
fleet, maintenance provisions for leased aircraft, inventones,
goodwill and market value testing, and financial instruments
Finnair will not yet apply hedge accounning 1AS 39 standard
to financial instruments for 2004 Operational leasing habilities
for Finnair aircraft in JFRS accounung will be treated as off-
balance sheet liabilities as they have been in Finrush financial
statement pracuce

The total sum of sharehoiders’ equity adjustments made
for the opering IFRS balance sheet, prepared for the transi-
tion dace of 1 January 2004, has grown from that announced
earlier due to updated pension habihty calculanans made
by the insurance institunion The total sum of the Group’s
shareholders’ equity adjustments reduces shareholders’ equity
by around 40 million euros Shareholders’ equity improves sig-
nificantly in terms of pension lability during 2004, because the
adjusted {FRS result for 2004 15 beater than the result accord-
ing to Finmish financial statement pracuce IFRS accounting
principles have no substantal impact on the Group's solvency
or capital structure

Finnatrwill pubhish its first IFRS financial statement in the
interim report for the first quarter of 2005 At the same ume
the opering IFRS balance sheet prepared for the transiuon date
of 1 january 2004 will be reported The first official 1FRS financial
stacement will be published for 2003, when the IFRS financial
statement for 2004 will be availabie for comparison

Short-Term Qutlook

Price competinon resultng from the market sicuation in the
industry will cononue to be intense Overcapacity in the Finn-
ish and Scandinavian markets will keep airlines’ load factors
low and create profitability problems for many

Finnair's strong market position and product superior-
ity are indicatve of an effecuve strategy The pricing reform
introduced in autumn 2003 has proved to be a success in hard
compeation The long decline in the average price has been
halted and the price level for 2005 1s expected to remain af last
year’s level The advance booling situauion seems encouraging,
growth m demand 1s expected to continue and load factors
will be higher than in 2004

Growth 1n capacity is expected to be less than five per cent
i1 2005 and will be directed primarly at Finnair's Asian traffic,
through the new Canton route and hgher flight frequency in the
summer, and at the expansion of fiynordic’s traffic fiynordic will
open new rautes in Scandinavia and efsewhere in Europe

Fianair 1s preparing for the introduction of twelve new 76-
seat Embraer E170 awrcraft The new aircraft wili enable capacity
to be flexibly allocated according to demand on each route
The Embraer acquisition will replace the Boeing MD-80 and
ATR 72 fleer, simplifying the fleet structure over the langer term
and generating savings

Capital investments (n 2005 will be less than 100 million
euros Thafour Embraer E170 aircraft which will jouy Finnair’s
fleet between September and December 2005 wilt be acquired
on operational feasing agreements Investments will include the
purchase of equipment required by the new type of arcraft

The high price of fuel will burden proficability Cost develop-
ment s under control and the conunuation of the operational
eficiency programme will yield savings and new revenue The
long dechine in umis costs wili stow in 2005 owing to higher fuel
costs, the introduction of the Embraer fleet and informavon
technology Investments

The 2005 operational result s expected to be better than
the previous year

FINNAIR PLC
Board of Direcrors
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Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The financial stacements of Finnair Oyj and Finnair Group have
been prepared in accordance with the Finmush Accounting regu-
lanons The officiat Anancial statements have been prepared

10 eurd amounis

Consohdated Financial Statements

Apart from the Parent Company Finnair Oy}, the consolidated
financial statements include all those companies 1n which
the Parent Company holds more than 50% of the votes either
directly or indirectly or in which the Group otherwise has con-
trol Subsidiaries acquired during the financial period have been
consolidated from the date of their acquisiton Comparues in
which controlling interest has been given up dunng the financial
year are included in the consohdated financial statements up
to the ame of relinguishing control

Inter-company transactions, recewvables and debts and the
iternal distribunon of profit were eliminated Mutual share
ownership was eliminated wath the acquisiion cost method
The eliminatien difference berween the acquisition price of
affiliate shares and the equity of the affiliate at acquisition ans-
ing in conjuncuon with elimination was allocated primarily to
those asset 1tems which caused the eimmauon difference and
was removed in accordance with the depreciation plan for fixed
assets The unallocated elrmnanon difference,r e the consoli-
dated goodwll, was eliminated at the moment of acquisiion
before year 2003 and after that the goodwill is amortised on
a straight-line basis over 1ts expected useful life To the extent
possible, the financial statements of the foreign subsidharies
wera harmonised with the principles used by the Group before
consolidanon Translanon to euros took place at the official
rate of exchange on the day the baoks were closed The trans-
lation differences caused by elimination of equity were treated
as adjustmeric items for consolidated unrestricred equity Por-
nons of the earnings of companies in which the Group owns
from 20-50% of the shares and votes were combined in the
consalidated financial statements using the equity method The
portion of the profit for the financsal year carresponiding to the
Group's holding 1s presented in the share of profits fess losses
of participating interescs The participaning goodwll for the par-
ucipaung mierest was entered as a non-recurring expense

ltems Denominated in Foreign Exchange

Recewvables, debts and habilines were translated into euros
at the official middle rate on the day the books were closed

Parent company s advance payments made and received were
entered in the balance sheet at the rate on the date of payment

Exchange rate differences on trade recesvables and payables
were treated as adjustments of sales and purchases Other ex-
change rate differences on other receivzbles and payables were
encered as exchange rate differences under financial income and
expenses Accumulated exchange rate differences were entered
i their entirery in the profitand loss statement

Dervative Agreements

Interest relaced to derivative agreements made to hedge
aganst foreign exchange and irterest rate risks was entered on
an accrual basis as either interest income or expense Exchange
rate differences related to hedging of business operations
are included in the operaung profit However, exchange rate
differences on separate dervative financial instruments that
provided hedging for specific off-balance sheet items and op-
eranonal business operations were deferred unul recogmuon
of the underlying item

The Fuel Price Risk Hedging

The results of using the varnious hedging instruments were en-
tered on an accrual basis together with the fuel costs

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

The balance sheet values for fixed assets are based on original
acquisian costs less planned depreciation
Planned depreciation i1s based on the economic service life
of the asset and on the book acquisiiion cost
Depreciation 1s calculated with the following principles,
depending on the type of asset
+ Goodwill on a straight-hne bases in five years
¢ Bulldings beeween 3-5% of the undepreciated
residual value
» Aircraft and arrcraft engines on a straight-line
bases as foliows
- New Airbus A320 farmily aireraft in 20 years
to a residual value of 10%
- other jet awcraft acquired before as new
in 15 years to a residual value of 10%
- used jevarcraft more than sixyears old
in 10 years to a residual value of 10%
-~ turboprop aircraftin 12 years to a residual
value of 10%
- turboprop arcraftacquired as used
in 10 years ro a residual value of 10%
- arcraftwithdrawn from use on a straight-line
basis enurely in the operating ume outlined
in the fleet renewal plan
+ Straight-line depreciation is 10 years for awrcraft
simulators and five years for computers worth
more chan 170,000 euros
+  Depreciauon of other tangible fixed assecs
1s 23% of the undepreciated residual value
+ Capitalised long-term expenditures are depreciated
w 3-10 years, depending on their nature

Inventories

inventores camprise the spare parts and matenals needed
for aircraft repair and maintenance and stocks for customer
services lnventones were evaluared at the average acquisiion



cost The value of work in progress includes average salary
costs, excluding salary-related costs, used stocks of materials
and supphes and subcontracung work

Current Assets

Securities entered under current assets are evaluared ar rhe

lower of original acquisition cost or market value

Leasing

Lease payments for Group aircraftare significant Annual lease
payments are treated as rent expenses Lease payments due
in future years under aircraft lease contracts are presented

as off-balance sheecitems

Extraordinary ltems

trems included i extraordinary items are typically substantial
and one-off by nature They also dewate from the ordinary
course of business operations Changes in accounting prin-
aiples and procedures are implemented by using extraordinary
itemns to show the impact on earrngs

Expenditure on Research and Development

Research and development on aircraft, systems and opera-
nons 15 conducted primanly by manufacturers Research and
product development expenditure for markeung and customer
service 15 entered as an annual expense for the year in which
it1s incurred

Appropnations

The difference between total and planned depreciation i1s shown
in the balance sheets as approprianions and the change during
the financral year in the ncome scatement In the consoldated
balance sheet the approprianons is divided into unrestricted
equity and deferred tax habiity and in the consolidated incotne
statement (nto result and deferred tax liability

Taxes and the Change in Deferred Tax Liability

Esumated taxes on profits for the financial year, adjustments
in taxes for previous financial years and the change in deferred
taxes were entered in the profit and loss staterment as taxes
The deferred rax llability 1s computed according to the tax rate
in effect during the financial year The balance sheet includes
a deferred rax hability due to book gains in connection with sale
of flight equipment This 1s based on new accounung regulanons
oh deferred tax habilities caused by nming differences

Pension Schemes

in the Group's domestic compantes mandatory and other
pension coverage for personnel has primanly been arranged
through the finnair pension fund and other mandatary pen-
sion coverage has been arranged through domestic insurance
compames The Finnarr pension fund 1s a jont fund including
the parent company and eight affiliaces at the end of the finan-
cal year Both mandarory employment pension coverage and
additional pension security are arranged by the fund for the
parent company and seven affilaces Since 1992, the pension
fund has no longer accepted employees other than piots for
additional pension coverage

The Finnasr pension fund’s pension labihity s fully paid up
with respect to basic and addinanal coverage

Pension fund labiliues are presented in the Notes to the
Financial Statements

The foreign affiliates pension coverage has been arranged
according to local legislation and pracace

The retirement age of the CEQ, the Group Board of Man-
agement members and managing directors of the affiliates
varies between 60-65, based on agreements

Comparability of the Finangial Years

The financial years are comparable
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Financial Sratuments
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

1 jan 2004- 1 Jan 2003-
31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2003
EUR muli EUR mil} Note
Turnover 1,698 4 1,557 6 1
Work used for own purposes and capitahised 14 35
Orther operating income 267 400 2z
Share of profits less losses of participating incerests 06 08
QPERATING INCOME 1,7271 3,601 9
OPERATING EXPENSES
Matenals and services 5883 493 9 3
Seaff coses 462 8 496 8 4
Deprectation 101 4 104 2 S
Other operating expenses 5576 5259 6
-1,7101 -1,620 8
OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS 170 -18 8
FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES -58 -28 7
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 112 217
DIRECT TAXES
Income taxes from operauons 07 09
Change in deferred tax habiliry 15 66
08 57 10
MINCRITY SHARE 02 -03

PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 118 -16 2




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2003
EUR rmill EUR il Nore
ASSETS
FIXED ASSETS 1
tntangible assets 368 283
Tangible assets 8658 860 2
Financial assets
Share n parucpating interests 32 45
Own shares 13 -
Qcher investmertts 66 914 7 108 903 8
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 47 2 49 2 12
Long-term recewables 147 209 13
Shart-term recevabies 209 9 146 9 14
Investments 2619 2761 15
Cash and bank equivalents 296 5633 18 2 5113 16
1,478 0 1,4151
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOQLDERS' EQUITY 17
Stock capital 720 720
Share 1ssue - oa
Share prermium account s7 57
Own shares fund 23 -
General reserve 1477 147 7
Retained earnings 3776 404 6
Profit/loss for che financial year 118 6172 -16 2 613 8
Capiral loan - 57 21
Total equity 617 2 619 5
MINORITY INTERESTS [ t2
LIABILITIES
Deferred tax habihity 1104 109 8 19
Long-term fiabibties 2120 2325 20,23
Shore-term hlablities 5372 85246 4521 794 4 22
1,478 0 1,415 1
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Financial Srat:i ments

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

1 Jan 2004- 1 Jan 2003-
31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2003
EUR mill EUR mull
Business operations
Operatng proft 17 -19
Deprecations 101 104
Change i working capital (net)
Inventortes, Increase (-}, decrease (+) 2 7
Short-term recewvables, increase (-), decrease (+) -63 2
Non interast bearing short-term liabilities, 83 4
increase (+), decrease (-}
Financial income and expenses {net) -6 -3
Taxes 1 6
Cash flow from operations 135 1
Investments
Investments in fight equipment -87 -70
Investments in bulldings 0 -1
Other investrments -25 -12
Change in advance payments -3 3
Capital expenditure, toral -115 -80
Sales of fixed assets 4 37
Cash flow from investments -110 -43
Finanang
Purchase of own shares -2 0
Decrease of long-term debts -26 -53
Long-term recevables, increase (-}, decrease (+) 7 -2
Short-term debts, increase (+), decrease {-) 2 2
Increase in shareholders equity 0 0
Dividends -8 -13
Cash flow of financing -28 -66
Change in hquid funds -3 -8
mcrease (+), decrease (-} in statement
Liquid funds at the beginning 294 302
Liquid funds, decrease (-), increase (+} in balance sheet -3 -8
Liquid funds at the end 291 294




FINNAIR PLC INCOME STATEMENT

1 Jan 2004~ 1)an 2003-

31 Oec 2004 31 Dec 2003
EUR mult EUR rmull Note
Turnover 1,357 0 1,284 4 1

Work used for own purposes and capitalised 15 35
Other operating Income 176 369 2

OPERATING INCOME 1,3761 1,324 8

OPERATING EXPENSES

Marerials and services 504 2 410 6 3
Seaff costs 3340 402 2 4
Depreciaton 311 912 5
Other operating expenses 5779 468 3 6

1,447 3 4,372 4

OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS -712 -47 5
FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES 163 -37 7

PROFIT/LOSS AFTER APPROPRIATIONS AND TAXES -549 =513

Extraordinary items 533 113}

Income taxes from extraordinary irems g0 g0
533 00 3

PROFIT/LOSS AFTER EXTRAOQRDINARY ITEMS -16 -513
Appropriations 00 849 o
Dhirect Taxes -40 -102 10

PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 56 234
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Financial Statcments

FINNAIR PLC BALANCE SHEET

31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2003
EUR nmull EUR milt Note
ASSETS
FIXED ASSETS 11
Intangible assets 244 99
Tangible assets 752 841
Finacial assets
Share in group undertakings 415 8 403 6
Share in participaring interests 24 32
Own shares 23 -
Other investments 27 5229 59 5067
CURRENT ASSETS
[nventories 427 44 4 12
Long-term recewvables 2099 2361 13
Short-term recewvabies 2771 192 5 14
Investments 2611 2754 15
Cash and bank equivalents 231 813 9 118 760 2 16
1,336 8 1,266 9
SHAREHOLDERS! EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 17
Share capital 720 720
Share issue - 00
Share premium accounc §7 57
Own shares fund 23 -
General reserve 1477 1477
Retained earnings 3076 294 9
Profic for the finacial year -56 5297 234 543 7
Capital loan - 57 21
Total equity 5297 546 4
ACCUMULATED APPROPRIATIONS - 00 18
LIABILITIES
Deferred tax iabihty 35 - 19
Long-rerm fiabiities 2107 2312 20,23
Short-term Liabilities 562 9 8071 486 3 7175 22
1,336 8 1,266 9




FINNAIR PLC CASH FLOW STATEMENT

1 jan 2004~ 1Jan 2003-
31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2003 ;_:’
EUR rll EUR mill &
Business operations E
Operating profit/loss -7 -48 -
Depreciation 3 91 E
Change in working capital {net) 3
Inventores, increase(-), decrease(+) 2 1 i
Short-term recevables, increase(-}, decrease(+]} -85 -27 »
Non interest bearing short-term labilines,\n increase(+), decrease(-) 63 24
Finacial iIncome and expenses (nec) 16 -4
Extraordimary items 53 o
Taxes -4 0
Other adjustments 0 4
Cash flow from operations 6 4i
investments
investrments in fight equipment -17 -30
Other investments -36 16
Change i advance payements 0 -9
Capital expenditure, total -53 -55
Sales of fixed assets 8 36
Cash flow from investments -45 -1g
Financing
Purchase of own shares -2 0
Increase of long-term debts -23 -46
Long-term recewables,increase (-), decrease (+) 26 7
Short-term debts, increase(+), decrease(-) 44 20
Increase in share holders equity 0 0
Dradends -8 -13
Cash flow from financing 36 -32
Change in iquid funds
Increase (+), decrease (-} In statemenc 3 -10
biquid funds in the begmming 287 297
Liguid funds, decrease (-}, ncrease(+) in baiance sheer -3 -10
Liquid funds in the end 284 287



Financial Sratements

it

Jan-Dec 2004

Group
Jan-Dec 2003
EUR rmill

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Parent Company

Jan-Dec 2004

Jan-Dec 2003

EUR mull

Turnover and Operating Profit by Division
Turnover by dvision

Scheduled Passenger Traffic 1,265 8 1,141 7 1,111 2 1,066 2
Letsure Traffic 3546 3273 223 4 214 4
Awviauon Services 413 3 413 3 2375 2800
Travel Services 916 874 - -
Less internal adjustments -426 9 -412 1 -2151 =276 2
Total 1,698 4 1,557 6 1,357 0 1,284 4
Distribution of turnover

by market areas, as % of turnover

Finland 47 % 50% 46 % 46 %
Europe 34% 34% 5% 39%
Other countries 15 % 16 % 19% 15%
Total 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 %
Operating profit by dmisicn

Scheduled Passenger Traffic -247 318 -633 316
Leisure Traffic 268 166 13 4 129
Aviation Services 203 193 -2 8 -11
Travel Services &7 35 - -
Support Services -121 =26 6 -i86 =277
Total 170 -18 8 712 -47 6
Other Revenue from Business Operations

Capital gain on flight equipment 20 125 0o 125
Capital gain on shares 66 06 70 06
Other items 181 269 106 238
Total 267 40 0 176 369
Materials and Services

Marerials and supphies for aircraft maintenance

and overhaul 213 268 213 268
Ground handling and catenng charges 1181 973 1400 954
Fuel purchases for fight operations 2126 1580 2011 1571
Expenses for tour operations 94 0 851 - -
Aircraft maintenance and overhaul 371 374 366 363
Expenses for data admumistration 68 3 653 683 653
Other items 369 239 369 29 8
Materials and services total 5883 493 9 504 2 410 6
Staff Costs

Wages and salaries 3627 3564 2599 2816
Pension costs 671 877 49 2 737
Other indirect employee costs 330 527 24 6 470
Total 462 8 496 8 3340 402 2
Salaries of Board of Directors and Managing Directors

Adminustration and managing directors 17 14 07 07
Personnel on average

Scheduled Passenger Traffic 3,839 3,906 3,331 3,438
Letsure Traffic 325 329 28 28
Aviation Services 3,928 4,193 2,295 3142
Travel Services 1,i85 1,269 - -
Support Services 245 284 248 258
Total 9,522 9,981 5,902 6,866




Group

Parent Company

Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 o
EUR mill EUR mill b
Depreciation g
Planned depreciation in the ncome statement g
On goodwill 15 01 - - -
On other long-term expenditure 58 63 41 46 =
On bulldings 35 36 - - s
On fight equipment 809 850 214 802 2
On other equipment 57 92 56 65 g
Total 1014 104 2 311 912 -
Other Operating Expenses
Lease payments for aircraft 889 927 184 6 999
Rents for cargo capacity 150 95 - -
Short-term leases and codeshare expenses 93 160 340 160
Office and other rents 427 390 40 5 439
Traffic charges 148 2 1215 1321 117 8
Sales and marketing expenses 106 3 107 0 831 953
QOther items 1472 140 2 03 6 95 4
Total 5576 5259 5779 468 3
Financial Income and Expenses
Dimvidends
Dwidends from Group undertakings - - 141 00
Divedends from participating interests - - 05 06
From others 06 03 03 02
Dmvidends total c6 a3 150 08
Interest income from long-term ivestments
From Group undertakings - - 94 22
From others 0c 00 00 G0
Total 00 00 94 22
Income from long-term investments total 06 04 245 31
Other interest and financial incorne
Interest ncome from Group undertakings - - $7 00
Interest. income from others G4 92 65 86
Financial income from others 62 92 11 64
Total 15.6 18 4 133 150
Interest Income from long-term investments and
other interest and financial iIncome total 16 2 187 378 181
Interest and other financial expenses
Interest expense to Group undertakings - - -52 -20
Interest expense to others -118 -114 -1 7 -114
Other financial expenses to others -103 21973 -45 -85
Total -221 2215 -214 218
Finanoal income and expense total .58 -2 8 16 3 -37
Exchange rate gans included i the item interest
and finanaial income 24 90 11 64
Exchange rate losses included in the item interest
and financial expenses 33 -91 -32 -80
Extraordimary ltems
Receved Group contribution - - 533 00
Total - - 533 00
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Financial Scatuments

Group

Parent Company

Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003
EUR rmill EUR rmull
9  Appropriations
Difference between planned depreciation and
depreciation in taxation
Equipment - - 00 849
Total - - 00 849
10 Dwect Taxes
Income taxes on regular business operations a7 09 20 00
Change in deferred tax habilhtes -15 -66 20 102
Total -0.8 -57 40 102
11 Fixed Assets
Intangible nghts
Acquisition cosc at the beginning 18 17 - -
Increases 040 00 - -
Book value at the end 18 i8 - -
Other long-term expenditure
Acquisition cost at the beginning 546 623 340 376
Increases 215 42 200 36
Decreases -84 -119 -14 72
Acquisition cost ac the end 677 546 526 340
Accumulated planned depreciation
from decreases 36 15 00 72
Accumnulated planned depreciation 416 -50 9 -282 -313
Book value at the end 97 153 244 98
Goodwill
Acquisiion at the beginning 13 - - -
Increases 42 n4 - -
Accumulated plan depreciation -16 -01 - -
Book value at the end 54 113 - .
Land
Acquisitson at the beginning 08 o8 - -
Increases 00 00 - -
Decreases 00 00 - -
Book value at the end 08 08 - -
Buildings
Acquisition at the beginning 178 5 1779 - -
Increases 02 07 - -
Decreases 00 00 - -
Acquisition ar the end 178 8 178 5 - -
Accurnulaged planned depreciauon from decreases - - -
Accumulated planned depreciation -85 9 925 - -
Book value at che end 8238 861 - -
Fhght equipment
Acquisition at the begmnmg 1,344 4 1,464 8 269 2 1,464 8
Increases 870 69 5 1638 301
Decreases 24 -180 0 oo -1,2257
Transfer between asset items -66 - - -
Acquisiion at the end 1,422 3 1,344 4 2859 2692
Accumulated planned deprecianon
from decreases 85 1555 - 5659
Accurnulated planned depreciauon 7070 -7817 -2323 <7769
Book value at the end 723 8 718 2 53 6 583




Group

Parent Company

Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 o
EUR rmull EUR mill :
Accumulated difference between toral ;
and planned depreciation . - 00 1235 ol
Change in depreciauon difference - - 00 -84 9 5
Transfer as capital contribution - - - -386 =
Accurulared difference berween total ;
and planned depreaanon at the end - - 00 00 s
Other equipment 7
Acquisition at the beginning 2161 268 7 1773 2297
Increases 52 64 33 48
Decreases 63 -58 9 19 -573
Transfer between asset itemns 66 - - -
Acquisition at the end 2216 2161 178 7 1773
Accumulazed planned depreciation
from decreases 50 569 56 55¢%
Accumulated planned depreciation -191 4 -238 6 -1515 -207 4
Book value at the end 352 345 216 258
Accurnulated difference between total
and planned deprectavon - - 00 00
Change in depreciation difference - - 00 00
Accumulated difference between
total and planned depreciation at the end - - 00 00
In fixed assets the share of machines
and equipment in book value 726 5 7217 551 62 4
Advance payments
Acquisition at the beginning 206 233 - 233
Change 25 26 - -233
Book value at the end 231 206 - 00
Financial assets
Parucipating interests
Acquisitton at the beginning 45 42 32 32
Increases -12 03 07 00
Book value at the end 32 45 24 32
Group comparnies
Acquisition at the beginning - - 403 6 737
Increases - - 131 3300
Decreases - - -1 0 00
Book value ac the end - - 415 8 403 6
Other interests and shares
Acquisition at the beginning 96 81 56 58
Increases 04 19 04 03
Decreases -37 -0 4 -3 6 -0 2
Book value at the end 63 26 24 56
Own shares
Acquisition at the end - - - -
increases 23 - 23 -
Book value at the end 23 - 23 -
Loan recevables
Acquisition at the beginning 13 53 03 53
Increases - 09 - -
Decreases -10 -4 9 00 -4 9
Book value art the end 03 13 a3 g3
Insurance values of fixed assets
Balance sheet values of aircraft
and spare parts EUR mill 6641 6533
insurance value EUR mill zm87 1,879 6
Insurance value USD mill 2,749 6 2,373 9
Insurance values of Group assets are based on repurchase values
Insurance values for fight equipment are USD-based
40

Repurchase values for other fixed assets are not specified in detail



Financial Scatements
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Financial assets

Partcapating interests

Group

Parent Company

ownership % ownership %
Suomen Jakelutier Oy, Helsinki 475 -
Amadeus Estoma, Estonia 333 -
Towelomat Oy, Helsinki 48 5 -
Finmsh Aviation Academy, Pon 495 49 5
Affilates
Kunteisto Oy Aerolan A-talot, Vantaa 100 -
Kintersto Oy Aerolan 8-ralot, Vancaa 100 -
Finnair Cargo Oy, Helsinks 100 100
Amadeus Finland Oy, Helsinki 95 95
Matkatoirmisto Oy Area, Helsinki 100 100
Area Baluca Reistburoo AS, Estonia 100 100
A/S Estravel Ltd, Estonia 720 B
Oy Aurinkomatkat - Suntours Lrd Ab, Helsink 991 813
Fininair Travel Senaices Oy, Helsink 100 100
Finnair Catering Oy, Helsinks 100 100
Finnatr Facilimes Management Oy, Helsinki 100 100
Finnair Aircraft Finance Ltd, Helsinks 100 100
A/5 Aero Airlines, Estonia 49 49
Finncatering Oy, Vantaa 100 -
Norvista Travel Ltd, Canada 100 100
Finnhandling Ab, Sweden 100 -
Nordic Airhink Holding Ab, Sweden 100 100
Mikkelin Matkatoimisto Oy, Mikkeh 51 -
Norwsta S R L, lraly 100 100
Northport Oy, Helsinki 100 100
Suomen Martkatowmisto Oy, Helsimla 100 100
Group Parent Company
Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003
EUR mull EUR rmull
Other shares
Market value of publicly quoted shares 35 31 24 22
book value C4 04 01 01
difference 31 27 232 21
Other finanaal assets loan recewvables
Fram other companies 03 13 03 03
12 Inventones
Materials and supples 455 47 6 410 430
Work in progress 17 15 17 15
Total 472 49 2 42 7 44 5
13 Long-Term Receivables
Long-term receivables from group undertakings
Loan receivables - - 2099 2361
Long-term receivables from athers
Qther recewables 147 209 oo 00
Long-term recervables total 14.7 209 209.9 2361




Group Parent Company
Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 Jan-Dec 2004 jan-Dec 2003
EUR mull EUR mili
14 Short-Term Recesvables
Short-term recevables from Group undertakings
Trade recevables - - 352 275
Prepaid expenses - - 56 5 70
Other recevables - - 00 36
Total - - 917 681
Short-term recewvables from participating interests
Trade recevables - - 01 00
Prepaid expenses - - 0o 00
Total - - o1 o0
Short-term receivables from others
Trade recewvables 1333 103 6 1041 756
Prepaid expenses 693 221 283 12 4
Qther recawvables 72 212 528 364
Total 2099 146 9 1852 124 4
Short-term receivables total 209 9 146 9 2771 192 5
15 Investments
Marketable securities 2619 2761 2611 275 4
The difference between market value and activated acquisition LostIs not essenuial
16 Cashand Bank Equivalents
Cash and bank equwvalents comprise funds in Group bank accounts
17 Equity
Equity 720 720 720 723
Share capital 00 00 00 00
Share premium account in the beginnig 57 568 57 56
Change 00 00 00 00
Share premium accountn the end 57 57 57 57
Own shares fund in the beginning 00 00 0o 00
Change 23 00 23 00
Own shares fund sn the end 23 00 23 00
Bonus issue 1477 147 7 1477 1477
Retained earmings in the beginming 3883 M73 3183 3077
Dividend payment -85 127 -85 127
Transfer to own shares fund 23 00 23 oo
Translaton difference 00 ga - -
Retained earmings in the end 3776 404 6 3076 2950
Profit for the financial year 118 162 56 23 4
Capital loan 6o 57 00 57
Total equity 617 2 619 5 5297 549 5
Distributable equity
Retained earmings in the beginming 3883 H173 3183 3077
Dwidend paymenc -85 127 -85 127
Translation difference 0¢ oG - -
Transfer to own shares fund 23 00 23 00
Profut for the financial year 118 <16 2 56 234
389 4 3883 3020 3183
Voluntary reserves in equity -678 -54 4 - -
3216 3339 3020 3183
Voluntary reserves
Accumulated depriciation difference 916 76 4
Recidental block reserve 01 02
97 76 6
Deferred tax liability of voluntary
reserves -238 -22 2
Total 67 8 54 4
18 Accumulated Appropnations
Accumulated depreaiauon difference - - 00 oo
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Femancial Stratemenrs

Group Parent Company

Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003
EUR mili EUR rmall
19 Deferred Tax Lability
From appropriations 238 222 - a0
Deferred tax receivables caused
by urming differences -80 -06 - -06
Deferred tax liabiity caused by uming differences 94 6 882 35 00
Total 104 105 8 35 06
20 Long-Term Liabiities
Loans from financial insurunions 1793 1996 179 3 1996
Pension loans 280 280 280 280
Other long-term habilities 47 48 35 36
Total 2120 2325 210 7 2312
Repayment of loans
Financial year 2005 258 2538
Financial year 2006 2569 259
Financial year 2007 60 250
Financial year 2008 261 261
Financial year 2009 262 262
Financial year 2010 - 1077 106 4
Total 2378 236 6
21 Convertible Subordinated Bonds (Capital Loan)

Convertble subordinated bonds of 38,683,223 09 euros were 1ssued on 28 February 1994,

with an annual interest rate of seven per cent unnl 2 Septernber 2004 Thereafter the interest

rate would have been five percentage points above the 12 month eunbor The bonds were undated
According to the terms of the bonds, Finnair Plc was enutled, prowided that the repayrment terms
were met, to pay back the principal amountin part or full as of 2 September 2004

The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc decided to repay the outstanding principal amount
of the debenture loan 5,627,567 97 euras to the debenture holders in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the debenture lcan The repayment date was 2 Seprember 2004

The bond issue s question 1s by nature a capttal [oan and has the following features i common
with this type of credit

1) Recewvables based on the loan are 1 a less preferenuial posiuen than other Company
commitments,

2) The loan can be repaid only in the event that the Company's restricted equity, computed

in accerdance with the Parent Company balance sheet and consolidated balance sheet approved
for the previous financial year, 1s fully covered,

3) Annual interest cannort be paid in excess of non-restricted equity on an mterest payment

date as reported in the accounts of the Company confirmed by the previous Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders, or distributable non-restricted equity as reported in consolidated Group accounts
for the same period, the payment of interest s in preference to the payment of dividends,

4) Mhe toan 1s unsecurad,

5) The holder of the bond is nar entitled to give notice or demand early

repayment unless the company is in hquidation

One debenture with norminal value of 1,681 88 euros was converted to 271 Finnair Plc shares
at a normunal price of 0 85 euros each The conversion price of a share was therefore 6 21 euros
The annual conversion period is from 1 to 31 January and from 1 April to 31 December




Group Parent Company
Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 Jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003
EUR mill EUR mill
22 Short-Term Liabilities
Liabilitres to Group undertakings
TFrade payables - 2712 261
Accruals and deferred income - 09 65
Other liabiliies - - 00 00
Total - - 381 325
Liabilitzes to participating interests
Trade payables 0o 00 06 00
TFotal (L] 00 05 00
Liabilities to others
Loans from financial institutions 258 258 258 258
Pension leans 00 01 00 00
Advanced receved 349 291 - -
Trade payables 897 79 4 500 400
Accruals and deferred income 342 4 276 9 2977 2490
QOther habilities 443 409 180 6 1390
Total 5372 4521 5541 4537
Short-term habilities total 5372 4521 5929 486 3
Accruals and deferred income
Unearned air transport revenues and lizbility
for frequent-fiyer bonus scheme 7 191 983 1191 983
Holiday pay reserve 777 777 590 662
Other items 145 & 1010 1305 910
Total 342 4 276 9 308 6 2555
IThe item includes a hability of 20 4 million euros for the Finnair Plus frequent-flyer bonus sceheme
Osher items include undue interest and other deferred income for the financial year
23 Pension Liabihties
Tortal liability of penston fund 774 7 746 6 7073 689 9
Mandatory portion covered -453 8 -417 2 -399 2 -570 8
Non-mandatory benefit covered -3209 -329 4 -308 1 -3191
Uncovered hability of pension fund 0o 00 00 o0
Liability for pensions paid directly
by the companies 00 o0 00 00
Total 00 00 o0 00
24 Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities
Pledges on own behalf 2308 2556 0S5 102
Pledges on Group undertakings 00 06 00 06
Guarantees on Group undertakings 796 42 4 796 42 4
Total 310 4 298 6 800 53 2
25 Aurcraft Lease Obligations
Amounts due to be paid
Fiancial year 2005 809
Financial year 2006 66 3
Financial year 2007 526
Financial year 2008 500
Financial year 2009 385
Financial year 2010 - 1016
Total 3901

Aurcraft lease payments

The above lease payments comprise unpaid rentals under outstanding operating leases

Under operaung [eases the lessee 15 only obliged to pay rent for the relevant lease term with no hiability
on termination, the economic nisk of ownership remaining wich the lessor

All the obligauons are from operacing leases

The parent company has hired 1ts fleet by operational leasing contract from s 100% owned affiliate Parent company’s
obligation for these rents 1s 180 5 million euros foryear 2005 Projected lease payments for the future years are determined

according to specified internal pricing method Annicipated lease payments for the year 2006 are 174 3 million euros

FSIUBRIAIBLG {PisUe iy

S



Financial Statemuonts

Group Parent Company
jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003 jan-Dec 2004 Jan-Dec 2003
EUR mill EUR mull
26 Qther Lease Obhgations
Other lease obligations 518 435 246 422
27 Dusputes and Lisgation
During the financial year 2004, no new significant fegal proceedings were insututed
A claim against Finnair and Finnair Cargo Oy for lost cargo s soll pending in the District Court of Helsink
The amount claimed 15 approximarely ¢ 9 million euros
A DVT (deep-vein thrombosis) claim is sult pending in Australia Finnair has not been informed
of the amount of the claim
28 Denvatve contracts on 31 December 2004, EUR million
Nominal value Fatr value Nominal value
2004 2003
Currency denvatives
Forward contracrs 2971 -8 4 1210
Currency opuons
Bought 235 03 277
Sold 235 03 325
Currency swaps 560 -416 1216
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate options
Bought 220 00 238
Sold 440 -06 47 5
Dervatve contracts rotal 506 2 -60 8 3740
Other denvative contracts
Fuel price agreements tonne 270,900 30 161,300
Fuel options
Bought tonne 33,000 01 0
Sold tonne 33,000 -09 18,000
29 Personnel Fund

Abonus provision of 0 5 milhion euros has been entered into staff costs




30 Share Opution Scheme for Key Personnel

Finnair Plc year 2000 option scheme

The Annual General Meeting on 24 August 2000 approved the proposal by the Board of Directors to 1ssue share option
rights for key personnel of che Finnair Group The share option nghts are intended to form parr of the incentive scheme
for the personnel of Finnaw Group The number of the option rights issued 15 4,000,000 Of the oprion nights 2,000,600
are marked with the letrer A and 2,000,000 with the letter B The option rights confer enutlement to subscribe

for a maximum of 4,000,000 shares in Finnasr Plc

The share subscripuon price in case of opuion rights A is the trade volume weighted average quotation of the Finnair Plc
share in the Helsinki Exchanges between 1 July and 31 August 2000, with an addison of twenty (20) per cent, this 15 519
euros and in case of option B the trade volume weighted average quotacion of the Finnair Plc share in the Helsinki Exchanges
between 1 July and 31 August 2001, with an addivon of fifteen (15) per cent, this 1s 5 48 euros From the share subscription
price 15 deducted, as per each date when the relevant dividend is available for payment, the amount of dwvidend distnbuted
after the beginming of the period for determination of the subscription pnce but before the dare of the share subscription
The share subscripuon price 31 Decernber 2004 for opuion nghts Ais 4 22 euros and opuion nghis B 516 euros

The subscripuon penod began gradually on 1 May 2003 and t May 2004 and 1t shall end for all warrants on 31 August 2006
The maximurm increase in Finnair Plc share capiral is 3,400,000 euros The soaal secunty prowsions for the share option
scheme have been made

Finnair Plc 2004 share-based incentive scheme

Finnair Group introduced share-based bonuses for key personnel through an option scheme 1n 2000 When it became
apparent in 2004 that conunuation of an option scheme In state interest companies was no longer possible, a share-based
incentive scheme geared at direct ownership of shares was designed for the Group’s key personnel

The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc approved the share-based incentive scheme on 18 June 2004 In the share-based incen-
tve scheme key personnel have the opporrunity to receive company shares as a bonus for three one year earmings perods
depending on whether Largets set for the earnings period have been met

The Board of Directors sets the rargers for each earmings period annually The targets will be set on the basis of the economic
and/or operauonal development of the Finnair Group Meetng the targets set for the earnings period will derermine how
much of the maximum bonus will be paid out

A bonus for the 2004 earning period will be paid outif the Finnair Group’s earnings per share (EPS) 1s over 0 10 euros
and if return on capital employed (ROCE) 1s over 3 5% The bonus wili be paid in fult if the EPS 1s at least 0 60 euros
and the ROCE at least 8 5% Between these two values the bonus will be determined 1n a linear fashion

Targets set for 2004 do not meet those of the company in the long run The 2004 critena take into constderation
the special circumstances of the industry
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Frnancial Statemencs

SHARES AND SHARE CAPITAL

Shares and Share Capital
On 31 December, 2004 the Company’s share capnial was 72,045,331 08
euros and the total number of issued shares was 84,759,273 Each
share has one vote at the Annual General Meeting and the nominal
value of the share 1s 0 85 euros

The minimum and maximum values of Finnair Plc share capieal are
60 million euros and 240 million euros respecuvely, within the hiits
of which share capial can be raised or lowered without amendmng the
Arucles of Association The company shares were added on to the
book entry securities systern in June 1993

Share Quotations

Ftnnair Plc shares are quoted on the Helsinki Exchanges Since
January 1995, they have also been traded on the SEAQ (Stock
Exchange Automatic Quotation) system on the London Stock
Exchange

Dividend Policy and the Payment of Dividend
The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc proposes to the Annual General
Meeung that a dividend of 0 10 euros per share or 71 6% of the earmings
per share will be paid for the financial year 2004

It ts the aim of Finnair’s didend policy to pay on average at
least one third of the earnings per share as dividend during an econo-
mic cycle The company intends to take into account the Company’s
earmings trend and outlook, financial situanan and capital needs for
any given period

Incentive Schemes for Key Personnel
The Annual General Meenng on 24 August 2000 approved the pro-
posal by the Board of Directors to 1ssue share option rights to key
personnel of the Finnarr Group The share opton rights are intended
ta form part of an incentive and commtment scheme for key Finnair
Group personnel

The number of the share oprion nghts 1ssued was 4,000,000
Fach opuon grants an entutlement to subscribe for one Finnair Plc
share The subscripuon penod for the A opuon nghts (2,000,000
units) began on 1 May 2003 and for the B opuon rights (2,000,000
units) on 1 May 2004 The subseripnion period for all opuion rnghrs
will end on 31 August, 2006

During che financial year 2004 no new shares were subscribed under
the share opron scheme On 31 December 2004 a tocal of 3,997,500
shares were avaslable for subscripuoen with 3,997,500 oprion nghrs
The opuon nghts accounted for 4 72% of the shares and votes

The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc approved the share-based
incentive scheme for the Group’s key persannel on 18 June 2004 The
plan is presenced in the note number 30 The scherme has no influence
on the total number of Finnair shares

Convernble Loans
in February 1994, Finnair Plc 1ssued a perpetwusal converuble deben-
ture loan for 38,683,223 09 euros {FIM 230 mithion) on the basis of

FINNAIR SHARE TRADE DEVELOPMENT
AND TRADE 2000-2004

FINNAIR PLC SHARF INDEX AND HELSINK!
STOCK EXCHANGE INDICES

an authorisauon receved from the Annual General Meeting of Share-
holders in August 1993 and from an Extraordinary Meeung of Share-
nolders in November 1993 During 2004 share subscriptions from the
1994 debenture loan were executed for 84,094 euros, equivalent to
13,550 shares The total amount of the oursranding debenture loan
was therefore 5,627,567 97 euros The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc
decided to repay the cutstanding principal amount of the debenture
loan including the interest to the debenzure holders in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the debenture loan The repayment
date was 2 September 2004

There were no converuble loans outstanding as of 31 Decem-
ber 2004

Board of Directors” Authorisation
The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc, on the basis of the Annual
Ceneral Meeung's decision on 8 Apnl 2004, has the authorisanon
to deade on the acquisition and transfer of 4,100,000 of its own
shares, which i1s under 5% of the Company’s share capital |n 2004,
a total of 422,800 shares were purchased under the authonsauon,
as a resulr of which the unused authornsanon amounted to 3,677,200
shares on 31 Decernber 2004 On 31 Decernber 2004 the purchased
shares were still in the Company's holding The authorisation is vahd
unul 6 April 2005

The Board of Direcrors has no other authorisauans for share
1ssues, granting share oprions orissuing convertble bonds

Government Ownership

Ac the end of the financial year on 31 December 2004 the Finrush
Government owned 58 4% of the Company’s shares and votes On 20
June 1994, Parliament dearded to maintain the Government’s majority
holding and gave its consent to reduce that holding to fess than we-
thirds Should the 1ssued opuon nghts be used for the subscription
of Finnair Plc shares, the Government’s holding would be 55 8%

Share Ownership by Management

On 31 December 2004, the members of the Company's Board of
Directors and the President & CEQ owned 11,100 shares, which rep-
resents 0 0% of all the shares and votes

Share Prices and Trading
The Finnair Ple share was quoted ar 5 56 euros on the Helsinki Exchan-
ges on the last day of the financial year The total market value of
the Company's shares was 471 3 million euros (449 1) The tughest
trading price during the financial yearwas 6 57 euros (5 58) and the
lowest 4 46 euros {3 20)

A towal of 21 3 million shares {17 8§} were traded on the Helsinki
Exchanges for a value of 114 @ million euros (76 4) during the finan-
cal year under review

SHARE PRICE DEVELOPMENT
COMPARED WITH OTHER
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Share-Related Key Figures

2004 2003 2002 2001 Proforma 2000
Share-related key figures
Earnings/share EUR D14 -3 19 043 008 095
Equity/share EUR 729 724 758 722 754
Dmdend/share EUR 010 010 015 co7 0 40
Dwidend-to-earmings rato % 716 -522 345 831 422
P/Eratio 39 81 27 66 8 63 44 52 471
P/CEPS 35 44 19 24 15
Effective didend yield % 18 19 40 19 90
Number of shares and share prices
Average number of shares adjusted for share issue 84,750,387 84,743,371 84,740,792 84,739,098 84,739,008
Average number of shares adjusted for share issue
{wath diduted effect) 86,757,963 86,048,385 85,663,479 85,663,479 85,663,479
The number of shares adjusted for share issue
at the end of financial year 84,759,213 84,745,663 84,743,163 84,735,098 84,739,098
The number of shares adjusted for share issue
at the end of financial year {with dilured effect) 88,756,713 86,048,385 85,665,173 85,663,479 85,663,479
Number of shares end of financial year 84,759,213 84,743,163 84,743,163 84,739,098 84,739,098
Prices adjusted for share 15sue
hughese EUR 6 57 558 510 520 4 99
lowest EUR 4 46 320 370 348 365
Markec value of share capstal 31 Mar/31 Dec  EUR mull 471 449 318 318 379
No of shares traded 21,277,418 17,817,180 16,683,820 10,894,673 8,123,712
No of shares rraded as % of average no of shares % 2510 2102 19 70 12 90 9 &0
Shareholders by type as at 31 December 2004
Number of Number of
shares % shareholders %
Public bodies (srare, local goverment) 54,930,811 85 42
Regstered in name of nominee 11,357,571 13 10
Housholds 5,535,622 7 8,131 93
Financial Insttutions 4,473,890 5 49 1
Ourside Finland 4,228,276 5 42
Privare companies 3,451,071 4 391 5
Associations 756,590 1 77 1
Not converted to the
book entry system 25,590
Total 84,759,213 100 8,742 100
Finnair Plc, acquisation of own shares
Period Numbers of shares Nominal value, EUR Acquisition value/EUR Average price/EUR
1july-18 August 2004 422,800 359,380 2,275,666 538
By 31 December 2004 Finnair Plc holds 422,800 own shares, which represent 0 5% of all shares and votes
Breakdown of shareholdings as at 31 December 2004
Shares held Shareholders Shares
1-100 3,338 163,085 DIVIDEND PER YEAR
101-1 000 4,103 1,714,721
1001-10 000 1,137 3,192,886 EUR mall
10 001-100 000 126 3,945,842 a0 100
100 Q01-1 000 000 24 7,853,878
1000 001- 4 56,505,848 A 80
Reg in the name of a nominee 10 11,357,571 s [ i 60
Not converted toyn the book entry system 25,382 ﬂ 40
Total 8,742 84,759,213 20 , 20
!
! o
The brokerage firms analysing Finnair l \ /
ABN AMRO/Alfred Berg, Steven M Broaker 10 '__F -+ 28
Carnegie Investment Bank AB, Finland Branch, Jussi Karhunen | P! A0
eQ Bank Ltd, Bengt Dahlstrom .tr}! ' ;?\ |
FIM Secunities Ltd , Linda Blom 0 . : 60

Kaupthing Bank Oyj, Jutta Ratwkainen
Mandatum Securities Led , Robin Johanssan
Opstock Banking, Pekka Spolander

SEB Securities, Kari Paajanen
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* The 2004 proposui of the Board of Directars o the AGM
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Financial Statements

Largest shareholders as at 31 December 2004

Number of shares % of votai shares
1 Srtate of Finland 49,510,682 58,41
Odin Norden 3,470,166
QOdwn Finland 540,400
2 Qdin Forvaltning AS 4,010,566 4,73
Tapiola Mutual Pension insurance Company 2,325 000
Tapiala General Mutual Insurance Company 256,300
Taptola Mutal Life Assurance Company 171,200
Tapiola Corporate Life Insurance Company 110,000
Tapsola Fund 54,700
3 Tapiola Group 2,917,200 3,44
Pohjola tnsurance Company
Pohjola Finland Value Fund 132,000
Pohjola Forte Fund 1,200,000
Pohjola Interest Share Fund 60,000
Pohjola Group 1,431,200 1,69
5 The Local Government Pension Insutution 1,000,000 1,18
OP-Delta Fund 624,500
OP-Pirkka Fund 55,000
& OP Funds 679,500 0,80
7 Fortum Pension Insurance Company 556,020 0,66
8 Sonstock Oy 485,000 0,57
9 Nordea Nordic Fund 457,900 0,54
10 Finnarr Ple {own shares) 422,800 0,50
11 Rausanne Qy 411,300 0,49
12 Etera Mutual Pension Insurance Company 401,700 0,47
13 Rannila, Esa 398,800 0,47
Akua Capial Fund 200,000
Akpa Secura Fund 85,000
14 Akna Funds 285,000 0,34
Alfred Berg Finland Fund 130,850
Alfred Berg Small Cap Fund 84,900
Alfred Berg Opumal Fund 54,300
15 Alfred Berg Funds 27,050 0,32
16 Turku City Fund 261,800 0,31
17 Kaleva Mutual Insurance Company 250,000 0,29
18 Sampo Life [nsurance Company 238,807 0,28
19 Seucursty Trading Oy 200,000 0,24
20 Nordea Pension Fund 196,200 0,23
21 Saving Bank Finland Fund 189,800 0,22
Ventas, Pension Insurance Company 105,301
Venitas, Life Company 21,700
22 Veritas Group 127,001 0,15
23 Church Central Fund 113,200 0,13
24 Ingman Finance Oy Ab 100,000 0,12
25 EQ Sinus Fund 100,000 0,32
Registered in the name of a nomineee 11,357,571 13,40
Others 8,387,116 9,90

Total 84,759,213 100,00




BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROPOSAL ON THE DIVIDEND

The Group’s distributable equity according to the financial statements on 31 December 2004 amounts to 321,601,403 59
euros, while the distributable equity of the parent company comes to 301,972,035 94 euros The Board of Directors praposes
to the Annual General Meeting that a diidend of 0 10 euros per share be distributed, a total of 8,475,921 30 euros, and that
the rematnder of the distnbucable equity be carried over as retained earnings

Helsinki, 16 February 2005
The Board of Directors of Finnair Pic

Christoffer Taxell Kar Jordan $amuli Haapasalo
Markku Hyvarinen Vels Sundback Helena Terho Kaisa Vikkula
Finrair Plc's CEQ
Keijo Suifa

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of Finnair Plc

We have examined the accounts, the financial statements and
the administration of Finnair Ple for the financial year 1 January
2004 to 31 December 2004 The financial statements prepared
by the Board of Directors and the Presidentand CEO include
the review of operations and the statements of profit and loss,
the balance sheets and the notes to the financial statements
for the Group and the Parent Company On the basis of our
audit, we 1ssue the statement below on the financial statements
and the admimistration

We have conducted the audit in accordance with Finnish
Standards on Auditing Those standards require that we per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstaterment
An audit includes examining on a test basis evidence suppor-
ung the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and sigmficant es-
umates made by the management as well as evaluatng the

overall inancial statement presentaton The purpose of our
audit of the administranon 1s to examine whether the mem-
bers of the Board of Directors and the President and CEO of
the Parent Company, have legally complied with the rules of
the Companies Act

In our opinion the financial statements have been prepa-
red in accordance with the Accounting Act and other rules and
regulations governing the preparason of financial scatements
in Finland The financial statements give a true and fair view,
as defined 1n the Accounting Ac, of borth the Group and the
Parent Company’s result of operanions and the financial posi-
von The financial statements, including those of the Group,
can be adopted and the members of the Board of Directors
and the President and CEQ can be discharged from liability
for the period audited by us The proposal by the Board of Di-
rectors concerming disposal of the profic for the financial year
complies with the Compames Act

Helsinki, 1 March 2005

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd

Authorised Public Accountants

Eero Suomela
APA

Jorma Heikkinen
APA
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Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INDICATORS 2000-2004

Pro forma
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Consolidated income statement
Turnover EUR mill 1,698 1,558 1,656 1,631 1,658
- change % g0 60 16 295 -
EBITDA EUR mull 18 85 175 145 232
- in relations to turnover % 70 55 s 89 140
Operaung profit EUR mill 17 -19 &0 13 11
- i cetations to turnover % 10 -12 36 038 67
Profit betore extraordinary items EUR mill 11 -22 54 9 120
«in relanons to turnover % 07 -14 33 05 72
Profit before taxes EUR mill 11 -22 54 9 149
-1n relations to turnover % 07 14 33 03 90
Caonsolidated balance sheet
Fixed assets EUR mult 915 904 958 1,094 1,009
Current assets EUR mill 563 SH 522 414 530
Total assets EUR ml 1,478 1,415 1,480 1,508 1,539
Shareholders equity and nmunority interescs EUR mull 618 521 649 618 645
Liabilives EUR rmull 860 754 83 890 894
Total habilhites EUR rmull 1,478 1,415 1,480 1,508 1,539
Gross capital expenditure EUR mull 15 81 102 281 247
Gross capital expendrture in relation to turnover % 67 53 62 17 2 149
Return on equity {ROE}) % 20 -25 59 12 133
Return on capital employed (ROCE) % 37 0o 76 29 153
Average capital employed EUR mll 887 934 1,008 1,003 893
Increase In share capital EUR mill o a 0 0 1
Dividend for the financral year" EUR rmili 8 8 13 6 34
Earnings/share EUR 014 -019 043 008 095
Earnings/share adjusted for aption nights
(with dilunion effect) EUR mil} 014 -019 043 008 095
Equity/share EUR 729 724 758 722 754
Dividend/share® EUR 010 010 018 Qo7 040
Dividend/fearmings % 716 =522 345 831 422
Effective dividend yield % 180 189 4 00 150 900
P/CEPS 35 44 19 24 15
Cash flow/share EUR 16 12 20 16 29
P/E ratio 3983 -27 46 8 63 44 52 471
Equity rauo % 427 44 4 443 413 422
Net debt-to-equity {Gearing) % 55 -29 31 346 1M1
Adjusted gearing % 955 1027 820 116 6 727
Interest bearing debt EUR mill 258 277 322 427 316
Liquid funds EUR rull 291 294 302 215 245
Net interest bearing debt EUR mill -34 -18 20 212 71
-1n relagions to turnover % 20 B 12 130 43
Net financing income (+) / expenses -} EUR mill -6 -3 6 -4 9
-1n relavons o turnover % 03 02 -03 -03 06
Netinterest expenses EUR mdl -2 -2 -5 -4 -2
-n relavons to turnover % 01 01 03 03 -01
Operational cash flow . EUR mill 112 82 168 138 243
Operational cash flow in relauon to turnover % 66 52 102 85 14 6
Average number of shares adjusted for the share issue 84,750,387 84,743 171 84,740,792 84,739,098 84,739,098
and the number of share at the end of the financial year
{with diluted effect) 2) 86,757,963 86,048,385 85,663,479 85,663,479 85663,479
Average number of shares adjusted 84,759,213 85,745,663 85743163 84,735,098 84,739,098
for the share 1ssue
and the number of shares at 88,756,713 86,048,385 85,665,173 85,663,479 85,663,475
the end of the financial year {with diluted effect) 2)
Personnel an average 9,522 9,981 10,476 10,847 11,051

The number of personnel are averages and adjusted for part-nme employees

1) The disdend for 2004 1s a proposal of the Board of Directors to the Annual General Meeting
2} In caleulating the diluted figures the impact of canvernble bonds and the year 2000 share opuon scheme have been included
The diluted effect has been calculated by the rate of the closing day




Turnover by sector, EUR mill

2004 2003

Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Qi
Scheduled Passenger Traffic 3324 3180 3165 2989 294 0 2858 2774 284 5
Leisure Traffic 100 4 803 752 981 892 757 687 937
Awviation Services 3 038 1012 107 2 1060 1014 988 1071
Travel Services 222 2258 249 220 225 210 2212 217
Group elminations -1650 -1024  -1080 M5 1057 -987 -1010 -1067
Finnair Group Total 4511 4228 4098 4147 4060 3852 3661 4003
Previous year 406 0 3852 3661 400 3 4337 404 7 4269 3911
Change % 11 98 19 38 -6 4 -4 8 -14 2 24

Operatng profit excluding capital gams by sector, EUR mill

2004 2003

Q4 Q3 Q2 (¢} Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
Scheduled Passenger Traffic -31 55 635 <207 -14 9 24 76 19 4
Leisure Traffic 70 77 04 17 71 66 12 17
Awviation Services 18 68 63 54 51 75 40 -01
Trave! Services. 12 12 23 18 19 07 11 -02
Croup eliminations 05 -111 53 -59 -85 -7 86 -91
Finnair Group Total 54 101 -28 77 -23 53 -99 =271
Previous year 93 53 99 =271 00 -1 9 294 30

CALCULATION OF KEY INDICATORS

EBITDAR «  QOperatng profit + deprecianon + aircraft lease rentals

EBITDA = Operaung profit + depreciation

Return on equity % (ROE) _  Resultbefore extraordinary items - taxes <100
Equity + minonity Interests (average at the beginning and end of the financial year)

Capital employed = Balance sheet total - non interest bearing abilities

e ap o oct |+ My o g o
curnpshr () - el e st sene ) py st

Equity/share (Eure) - S?J:?:er of shares at the end of the financial year, adjusted for the share issue
Dividend/earnings % - Dwdend per share %100

Earmings/share

Dmdend per share
fii d -
Effective dradend yield % Adjusted share price at the end of the financial year x 100

Share price at the end of the financial year

P/CEP -
/ > Cash flow from operations per share
Cash flow from aperations
hfi h E -
Cash fiowshare (Eure) Adjusted average number of shares dunng the financial year
P/E rano _ Share price at the end of the financial year

Earnings/share

Equity + rmunchty interests
Equity rato tn per cent % = % 100
quity P Balance sheet total - advances receved

Interest bearing debt - iquid funds
Equity + minority interests

Gearing % = x 100
Interest bearing debt + 7 x annual arcraft leasing payments - iquid funds

x 100
Equity + minority incerests

Adjusted gearing % -

Operational cash flow = Qperaung profit + depreciauon + financial items + extraordinary 1rems - taxes
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